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AVAILABILITY OF THIS REPORT IN OTHER FORMATS 

Copies of this report are available from our website:

www.westernpower.com.au

Or you can call us on 13 10 87 to request it in an alternative format.

If you would like to provide feedback on this report please email: 

westernpower.communications@westernpower.com.au
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CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT
It is a pleasure to report on the 2014/15 

fi nancial year, on behalf of the Western 

Power Board, of which I have been Chair 

since April this year.

Western Power provides a valuable 

essential service to the Western Australian 

community: building, maintaining and 

operating the South West interconnected 

electricity network.

The management team and employees 

at Western Power have a relentless focus 

on meeting the needs of our customers. 

As evidence of their focus, Western Power 

has achieved all 17 Service Standard 

Benchmarks set by the Economic 

Regulation Authority.

These benchmarks are key performance 

measures, deemed to be of highest 

value to our customers and the wider 

community. Meeting these benchmarks for 

service, safety and reliability is a signifi cant 

achievement for which I congratulate all 

Western Power employees.
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We operate as part of a dynamic and changing 

energy market. As a service provider our future 

lies in understanding and meeting our customers’ 

changing needs. This means building a fl exible 

and responsive business focused on continuous 

improvement and improving productivity from the 

valuable community assets we manage.

I also recognise the capacity Western Power 

consistently demonstrates to respond to emergency 

situations and help communities recover after 

disaster strikes. This year, we responded to summer 

storms across the Perth metropolitan area, and 

bushfi res in Bullsbrook, Waroona, Boddington, 

and Northcliffe – many of which resulted in large 

numbers of customers losing electricity supply. In 

Northcliffe alone our crews replaced 135 poles and 

several kilometres of lines in record time following 

the fi re.

Western Power, in common with the energy industry 

across the world, is responding to the challenges 

brought about by new technology. Self-generation, 

renewable energy and better energy effi ciency 

are rapidly changing the electricity usage across 

the network. I am confi dent Western Power is well 

placed to adapt to, and extract, the opportunities 

these new technologies provide to drive greater 

affordability and choice in the provision of electricity, 

benefi tting both electricity customers and the State’s 

economic development.

While we have made considerable progress on 

our journey of change over the past year, and 

acknowledge that much has been achieved, there 

is still more to do. Chief Executive Offi cer, Paul 

Italiano, and his management team have been highly 

effective in implementing an ambitious strategy, 

and the business is now well positioned to face the 

challenges ahead.

I acknowledge our Minister, the Hon. Dr Mike Nahan 

MLA, for his ongoing support and understanding as 

we continue to implement the necessary changes to 

our business model to match the shifting needs of 

our customers. In particular, I acknowledge Minister 

Nahan for instigating the Electricity Market Review.

This review will deliver an energy market structure we 

believe will result in lower costs for customers while 

ensuring the long-term sustainability of the industry.

Western Power supports the review and the key 

objective of delivering greater competition in the 

electricity market. We believe this will provide 

Western Power with the fl exibility to support new 

technology and deliver more creative solutions for 

our customers that we haven’t been permitted to do 

in the past.

I thank and acknowledge my fellow directors for 

their commitment and support. I would also like 

to recognise, in advance, the contributions of Paul 

Underwood, Mervyn Davies and Sue Wilson, who 

will shortly be ending their terms on the Board.

Two new directors, Greg Martin and Peter Iancov, 

bring extensive knowledge and experience that will 

assist Western Power to build on achievements 

made over the past years and manage the 

regulatory transition that lies ahead under the 

Electricity Market Review.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I thank outgoing 

Chairman Alan Mulgrew and Deputy Chairman 

John Cahill. Under their guidance the corporation 

moved from a traditional network business to one 

focused on delivering customer outcomes. This is a 

signifi cant change and one that will ensure Western 

Power is in a solid position to meet our future 

challenges.

COLIN BECKETT

CHAIRMAN

     As a service 
provider our 
future lies in 
understanding 
and meeting 
our customers’ 
changing needs” 

    “



CEO’S 
REPORT
Electricity is vital to today’s lifestyle, making 

the work Western Power undertakes more 

important than ever.

Since 2012 we have been working hard 

to meet the challenges set for us by the 

regulator. The result of this three years 

of discipline has been that Western 

Power is on target to deliver $1.4 billion in 

savings across our fi ve-year, third access 

arrangement period.

These savings have been a result of 

signifi cant and consistent effi ciencies in 

both the capital and operating sides of 

our business. We used these savings to 

return solid profi ts to taxpayers and for 

investment in our network.

Our commitment to safe, reliable and 

affordable connection to electricity was 

refl ected in our performance during

2014/15, including:

• achieving all 17 Service Standard 

Benchmarks – the fi rst time since 2006

• Total Recordable Injury Frequency Rate  

falling from 7.6 to 5.8

• increasing customer satisfaction levels 

from 78 per cent to 80 per cent

• the number of interruptions our 

customers experience improving by 

14.2 per cent from 2012

• completion of the Mid West Energy 

Project under the $406 million budget.

We delivered these results at the same 

time as achieving a year-on-year reduction 

in operating expenditure for the third 

consecutive year – we are now $60 million 

a year more effi cient to run than three 

years ago.
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The improved fi nancial performance that has 

occurred due to better managing our operating 

expenditure means we have been able to increase 

our profi t. We are returning more money to the 

Western Australian community through dividends to 

the State Government, with remaining profi ts being 

invested back into the network.

DEMAND

The amount of electricity transported across the 

Western Power network reduced slightly to 17,047

gigawatt hours over the past year. This is in line 

with the slowdown in the wider economy and 

subsequent plateauing of population growth in 

Western Australia.

In 2014/15, the network peak was 3,605 megawatts, 

91 megawatts higher than the previous year. The 

peak was recorded on 5 January 2015. The all-time 

record network peak was 3,694 megawatts which 

was recorded on 25 January 2012.

The residential market during the year provided 

an insight into the transformation of the energy 

landscape. Residential connections to our network 

have been increasing, with another 10,500 

residential connections in 2014/15, while residential 

energy consumption per household has decreased 

by 17 per cent since 2008/09.

Consumers choosing to self-generate using new 

technologies have also contributed to the change in 

residential consumption. Over the past three years, 

Western Power has connected an average of 17,000 

solar systems per annum. More than 16 per cent 

of residential customers now have a solar system 

connected to our network, and we are continuing 

to see growth in applications for larger commercial 

solar systems.

The combination of these factors has resulted in a 

relatively fl at profi le for energy transported on the 

network since 2012.

NETWORK AFFORDABILITY

Western Power remained in control of its operating 

expenditure and has built a solid platform for 

future years. We remain committed to providing 

an affordable network and we continue to drive 

effi ciencies across the organisation. 

Building on gains made in the previous fi nancial year, 

2014/15 saw the continuation of a range of strategic 

initiatives to deliver the following high level outcomes:

• addressing the highest priority public safety risks

• expanding network capacity to meet growth

• connecting new customers

• maintaining service levels and improving service

• delivering through effi ciency.

Of the successes achieved to support our 

affordability measure, operating expenditure 

reduction is a key highlight. Operating expenditure is 

$27.5 million (fi ve per cent) lower this year, compared 

to last year, as a result of strategic programs 

undertaken by the business, as well as favourable 

weather and a fall in economic growth.

Savings have been made particularly in discretionary 

spending including entertainment, travel and 

consultancy fees, procurement and contract 

management.

     We delivered 
these results at 
the same time as 
achieving a year-
on-year reduction 
in operating 
expenditure 
for the third 
consecutive year” 

    “
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NETWORK INVESTMENT

Electricity plays an essential role in the economic 

development of the State and improving the living 

standards of the community. 

Network risks increase as network assets age. 

Whilst our works program focuses on addressing 

transmission and distribution assets that are 

operating beyond their originally intended lifespan, 

the average age of assets in the network continues 

to increase. We are aware of the consequences of 

failure and, as such, target our programs in a way 

that minimises the greatest risks.

One aspect of our network where this targeted 

approach has been apparent is wood poles. 

Over the past three years, we have worked with 

EnergySafety and the Economic Regulation 

Authority to reinforce 170,000 wood poles and 

replace 58,000. This year we changed our approach 

from volume focused to improving network safety, 

with 42 per cent of our capital expenditure on asset 

replacement aimed at maintaining and improving 

public safety outcomes.

In April, we also completed Australia’s biggest 

transmission project in more than a generation, the 

Mid West Energy Project. The $406 million project 

involved the construction of a 330 kilovolt double 

circuit transmission line from Perth to Three Springs 

— enabling the connection of mining projects 

such as the Karara mine and electricity generators 

including wind farms in the Mid West region.

The delivery of this project has been a team effort 

and I would like to thank everyone involved. I am 

pleased it was also delivered under budget.

SAFETY

The safety of the community and our people is, and 

will remain, Western Power’s most important priority. 

Maintaining a network that reduces the safety risks 

for employees, contractors and the community is 

central to our purpose.

At the end of the annual reporting period, our Total 

Recordable Injury Frequency Rate (TRIFR) was at 

5.8. Whilst this is our best ever performance, we are 

striving hard to reduce it further.

TRIFR shows a positive trend over the past three 

years, with both the employee and contractor 

TRIFR sitting below six. This positive trend in safety 

is also refl ected in our Lost Time Injury Frequency 

Rate (LTIFR). Our fi rm focus on the delivery of safe 

outcomes for our people has helped us achieve an 

all-time low LTIFR. Since, 2005/06, there has been 

an 85 per cent improvement in this area. 

These are commendable achievements for the 

business but we must be unrelenting in continuing to 

provide a safe environment for both our employees 

and the wider community.

This year our public safety KPI did not meet our 

target. This KPI includes both failure of network 

assets and third party interference with the 

network, with 64 per cent of all incidents being 

interference-related (e.g. bird/animal interference 

and underground or overhead conductor strikes). 

Asset failure incidents caused one public injury 

and fi ve cases of property damage that exceeded 

$20,000 during the year, which is an improved level 

of performance compared to previous years. We 

continue to work hard on reducing both asset and 

interference-related public safety incidents and this 

will remain a focus area in the coming year.
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ADAPTING FOR THE FUTURE

In 2012, the organisation was facing some signifi cant 

challenges. We went through the process of setting 

a strategy that was fi t for purpose, and then we had 

a very clear plan which we set about implementing.

Western Power is now fi t and ready to meet our 

future. Of course, like any business, we must 

adapt to stay on track and keep improving our 

performance. The good news is we know what’s on 

the horizon and I am confi dent the strong foundation 

we have built over the past three years has prepared 

us for what lies ahead.

These achievements have been made possible 

thanks to everyone at Western Power. I want to take 

this opportunity to thank the executives – including 

Stewart Hart, Andre Botha and John Pease who left 

during the year – and the Senior Leadership Team, 

and all Western Power employees and contractors 

for their efforts and contributions this year as we 

have embedded the progress that we have made 

over recent years. 

We have an unwavering commitment to serving 

our customers that is valued and respected in the 

communities in which we operate.

I thank the Board – including previous Chairman 

Alan Mulgrew, new Chairman Colin Beckett and all 

directors who have made a contribution over the 

past year – for its continued support of the executive 

team. The appointment of three new Board directors 

brings a wealth of experience and a new perspective 

to our governance which, I’m sure, will greatly assist 

the organisation as we enter this next stage of our 

transformation.

Our customers have rising expectations so we must 

respond to these needs, and we must do so in a 

manner that enables Western Power to continue 

to provide them with a safe, reliable and affordable 

supply of electricity for generations to come.

PAUL ITALIANO
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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 32K
students educated through

our schools program

 99.93%
network reliability

achieved

 17/17
Service Standard

Benchmarks achieved

 $11
reduction in the cost

per connected customer

 490
stakeholders educated through

our industry awareness program

 34K
new customers connected

to our network

 6.7%
reduction in overall costs

 72%
increase in net profi t

after tax

 23.7%
reduction in Total Recordable

Injury Frequency Rate

 12.5%
reduction in Lost Time Injury

Frequency Rate

 80%
of our customers rated

their experience positively

 99%
of complaints closed in

20 business days

 11secs
average time it took for

customers calls to be answered

 48%
increase in people following

us on social media

 54%
increase in the number of visits to

our website using mobile devices

PERFORMANCE
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The directors of Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) present this 

report in accordance with Schedule 4, clause 6, of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act).

WESTERN POWER’S DIRECTORS 

The following persons were directors of Western Power during the whole of the fi nancial year ended

30 June 2015 and up to the date of this report:

Name Duration

Colin Beckett (Board Chair) From 29/04/2015

Greg Martin (Board Deputy Chair) From 29/04/2015

George Cash From 27/07/2010

Mervyn Davies From 01/04/2006

Peter Iancov From 29/04/2015

Paul Underwood From 25/05/2009

Sue Wilson From 28/12/2012

Directors who resigned/retired during the fi nancial year

• Mr Mulgrew retired as director and Board Chair on 8 May 2015 (appointed as a director and Board Chair 

in August 2012)

• Mr Cahill retired as director and Board Deputy Chair on 31 December 2014 (appointed as a director in 

August 2009 and as Board Deputy Chair in July 2010)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Information on directors
Legend

NED = Non-executive director

F&RC = Finance and Risk Committee

P&PC = People and Performance Committee

Director Experience Committee responsibilities

Colin Beckett
MA (Cantab)

MICE

Year of birth: 1952

Board Chair
Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 28/04/2018.

Experience and expertise: Mr Beckett was a senior executive at Chevron Australia 

Pty Ltd, and was responsible for the development of the Gorgon LNG and domestic 

gas project, being developed on Barrow Island offshore Western Australia. Prior to this, 

Mr Beckett was employed at Mobil in Australia and at BP in Australia and the United 

Kingdom.

Mr Beckett is a past Chair and director of the Australian Petroleum Producers and 

Explorers Association (APPEA), past Chair of the CSIRO Energy and Transportation 

Sector Advisory Board, a past member of the WA Technology and Industry Advisory 

Council and a past member of the UWA Oceans Institute.

Mr Beckett has a Master of Arts in Engineering from Cambridge University. He is a 

member of the Institution of Civil Engineers (UK), a fellow of the Australian Institute of 

Engineers and a graduate member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Current directorships: Chancellor of Curtin University (since January 2013), Chair of 

Perth Airport Pty Ltd (since January 2015), non-executive director of Beach Energy Ltd 

(since April 2015) and non-executive director of Scitech WA (since February 2008).

P&PC member

Gregory Martin
B.Ec

LLB

FAIM

MAICD

Year of birth: 1959

Deputy Board Chair
Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 28/04/2018.

Experience and expertise: Mr Martin has over 30 years’ experience in the energy, 

utility and infrastructure sectors, having spent 25 years with the Australian Gas 

Light Company Limited (AGL), including fi ve years as Chief Executive Offi cer and 

Managing Director. After leaving AGL, Mr Martin was the Chief Executive Offi cer of 

the infrastructure division of Challenger Financial Services Group and, subsequently, 

Managing Director of Murchison Metals Limited.

Current directorships: Chair of Iluka Resources Limited (since January 2013), Chair 

of Sydney Desalination Plant Pty Ltd (since December 2012), non-executive director of 

Santos Limited (since October 2009), non-executive director of Energy Developments 

Limited (since May 2006), Executive Chair and Partner of Prostar Capital Ltd (since July 

2012) and member of CoAG Energy Council (since February 2015).

F&RC Chair

Hon. George Cash AM
LLB (Hons)

LLM

B.Bus

FGIA

Year of birth: 1946

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 27/07/2010, current term expires on 14/10/2016.

Experience and expertise: Hon. George Cash was a member of the Western 

Australian Parliament for nearly 25 years. He is a former Minister for Mines, Minister for 

Lands, Minister assisting the Minister for Public Sector Management, Minister assisting 

the Minister for Resources Development, Leader of the Government in the Legislative 

Council and President of the Legislative Council.

He is a former Chair of the Australian and New Zealand Minerals and Energy Council.

Current directorships: Not currently a director of any other entity.

P&PC Chair

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Director Experience Committee responsibilities

Mervyn Davies
B.E (Hons)

M.Eng.Sc

B.Comm

Year of birth: 1944

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 01/04/2006, current term expired on 20/08/2014. In 

accordance with the Act, Mr Davies remains in offi ce until either he resigns or is replaced.

Experience and expertise: Mr Davies has worked in all areas of electricity distribution 

and has extensive experience in managing both the fi nancial and technical performance of 

the business. He has previously held senior management positions at EnergyAustralia (now 

Ausgrid), Australia’s largest electricity distribution company. Since leaving EnergyAustralia, 

Mr Davies has established and operated an engineering consultancy practice, specialising 

in the engineering and economics of the electricity distribution industry.

Mr Davies currently holds directorships in electricity distribution businesses in Western 

Australia, Queensland and Tasmania. He holds Honours and Masters degrees in 

engineering and a Bachelor of Commerce (economics).

Current directorships: Non-executive director of Power and Water Corporation 

Northern Territory (since April 2014), non-executive director of TasNetworks (since April 

2014), non-executive director of ENERGEX Limited (since July 2012), director of Anrig Pty 

Ltd (since March 2004, also Chair), director of Girna Engineering Management Services 

Pty Ltd (since December 1983, also Chair) and member of the Advisory Committee of 

Capital Projects 2 (since October 2014).

F&RC member

Peter Iancov
B.E (Elec)

FIEAust

FAIM

FAIB

SMIEE

MAICD

Year of birth: 1966

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 28/04/2017.

Experience and expertise: Mr Iancov is a professional engineer with more than 24 

years’ expertise gained in critical energy infrastructure including electricity transmission 

and distribution, mining, commercial construction, contracting and defence sectors as a 

general manager, Chief Executive Offi cer, director and advisor. 

In his previous executive roles, Mr Iancov has been instrumental in securing and 

delivering major projects including electrical and gas generation, transmission and 

distribution networks, non-process infrastructure and commercial assets. He has a 

strong background in the successful delivery of multidisciplinary programs, commercial 

and contractual risk, governance, systems development and fi nancial management.

Current directorships: Non-executive director of Southern Ports Authority (since 

October 2014), non-executive director of KM Aboriginal Corporation (since June 2014), 

non-executive director of D+D Property Group Pty Ltd (since April 2014), non-executive 

director of Global Bridge Australasia Pty Ltd (since April 2014), non-executive director of 

Australian Submarine Corporation (since December 2013), non-executive director APD 

Power Pty Ltd (since November 2013) and non-executive director of Chronos Advisory 

Pty Ltd (since November 2013). 

F&RC member

Paul Underwood
B.Bus

ACA

GradDipAppFin

Year of birth: 1955

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 25/05/2009, current term expires on 20/08/2015. In accordance 

with the Act, Mr Underwood remains in offi ce until either he resigns or is replaced.

Experience and expertise: Mr Underwood is a chartered accountant with over 

30 years’ experience in chartered accounting, corporate advisory and oil and gas 

exploration/production. He was the founding Managing Director and Chief Executive 

Offi cer of Tap Oil Limited, an oil and gas exploration and production company supplying 

gas to power generators in Western Australia. He has experience in the Western 

Australian energy markets.

Mr Underwood is a past director and Vice Chair of the Australian Petroleum Producers 

Association between 1998 and 2006, an industry representation group engaged with 

government on energy policy matters. He is currently Managing Director and Chief 

Executive Offi cer of Triple Energy Ltd, an oil and gas company listed on the Australian 

Stock Exchange.

Mr Underwood has particular experience in business solutions, investor relations, 

strategy and corporate governance. In 2003, Mr Underwood won the Ernst and Young 

Entrepreneur of the Year Award for Western Australia.

Current directorships: Managing Director of Triple Energy Ltd (since February 2012) 

and President of Alliance Francaise de Perth.

F&RC member

Susan Wilson
B.Juris

LLB

FAICD

FGIA

Year of birth: 1960

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 28/12/2012, current term expires on 27/12/2015.

Experience and expertise: Ms Wilson is an experienced director having been a 

non-executive director of Western Power Corporation, executive director of Bankwest 

and Chair of the WA Optometrists Board. She has particular expertise in governance 

strategy, stakeholder management including dealing with regulators and government, 

and legal issues. Ms Wilson had a successful career in the fi nance industry as a senior 

executive at Bankwest and HBOS Australia.

Current directorships: Member of the Curtin University Council (since May 2013, also 

Audit and Risk Committee member) and fellow of the Governance Institute of Australia 

(GIA), formerly Chartered Secretaries Australia (also Deputy Chair of the WA State 

Council of GIA).

P&PC member

F&RC member 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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WESTERN POWER’S PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal continuing functions of Western 

Power are:

• to manage, plan, develop, expand, enhance, 

improve and reinforce the electricity transmission 

and distribution network known as the South 

West Interconnected System

• to provide and improve electricity transmission 

and distribution services

• to provide access to services of network 

infrastructure facilities as required and authorised 

by Part 8 of the Electricity Industry Act 2004 

(WA) (which relates to network access)

• to provide services as required and authorised 

by Part 9 of the Electricity Industry Act 2004 

(WA) (which relates to the wholesale electricity 

market)

• to provide services that improve the effi ciency 

of electricity supply and the management 

of demand on electricity transmission and 

distribution systems

• to provide ancillary services.

In performing its functions, Western Power must act 

in accordance with prudent commercial principles 

and endeavour to make a profi t consistent with 

maximising its long-term value.

There have been no changes in the nature of 

Western Power’s principal activities during the 

fi nancial year ended 30 June 2015.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Information on the operations and fi nancial position 

of Western Power and its business strategies is 

presented in the CEO’s report in this annual report.

WESTERN POWER’S OPERATING RESULTS

Western Power achieved a profi t after income tax 

equivalent of $348.676 million for the fi nancial year 

ended 30 June 2015 (30 June 2014: $202.946 million). 

Western Power’s net cash fl ows before borrowings 

were negative $284.808 million (30 June 2014: 

negative $649.438 million). This cash defi cit was 

fi nanced by new cash borrowings of $286.277 

million (30 June 2014: $652.278 million).

DIVIDENDS

Western Power paid the following dividends to the 

Western Australian State Government during the 

fi nancial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 

2015.

Dividends 2014/15 2013/14

Final dividends paid $131.915 million $124.395 million

Payment date 23/12/2014 31/12/2013

Since the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2015 the 

directors have recommended, subject to the 

approval of the Minister for Energy (Minister), the 

payment of a fi nal dividend of $232.429 million in 

respect of the 2014/15 fi nancial year.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Western Power is currently undertaking a review of 

its non-core assets to identify any assets excess 

to requirements. A detailed sales process may be 

undertaken where considered appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Likely developments in Western Power’s future 

operations and their expected results are set

out below.

Electricity Market Review
On 6 March 2014, the Minister launched the 

Electricity Market Review (EMR). The review 

examines the structures of the electricity generation, 

wholesale and retail sectors within the South West 

Interconnected System in Western Australia and the 

incentives for industry participants to make effi cient 

investments and minimise costs.

The EMR is being undertaken in two phases.

Phase 2 was launched by the Minister on 24 March 

2015. It aims to give effect to the State Government’s 

preferred reform options to achieve the EMR 

objectives. The EMR reform options that would, if 

implemented, affect Western Power are:

•  Network regulation

This work stream will look at transferring 

regulation of the Western Power network 

including price, connection and access, from the 

Western Australian regime to be regulated under 

the National Electricity Law and relevant National 

Electricity Rules. It will also involve applying the 

relevant National Electricity Rules to regulate 

metering services within the Western Power 

network area.

•  Institutional arrangements

This work stream involves combining the 

Independent Market Operator and System 

Management.

Western Power is committed to implementing any 

enacted reforms arising from the EMR Phase 2.

Ageing network assets
The South West Interconnected Network (SWIN) 

was largely built prior to 1965. In general, older 

networks pose a greater risk, with the frequency 

and severity of defects expected to increase as 

the assets continue to age. It is anticipated that 

on average, the SWIN assets will continue to age. 

The State of the Infrastructure report published 

by Western Power details the current level of 

performance and highlights the risk associated with 

the network assets.

In response to this, Western Power is committed to 

managing the network:

• based on condition and risk consequence 

including enhanced inspection programs, 

targeted asset replacements and 

reinforcements, installing underground power 

and network automation

• by minimising the consequence of failing assets 

through vegetation management, insulating 

conductors and suffi cient insurance cover

• in accordance with stakeholder and community 

concerns.

Western Power will continue to manage these risks 

in line with available funding at the time. Should 

additional funding be required to address these 

risks Western Power will engage with the State 

Government through the business case process. 

Public safety
Western Power is required to maintain and replace 

network assets in a way that acceptably delivers 

a safe and reliable connection to electricity at the 

lowest cost to customers. All overhead electrical 

networks in Australia including the SWIN, have an 

inherent level of risk in operation. This risk arises 

from environmental and weather related factors, 

which are outside of the operator’s control, as 

well as from risks that are identifi ed as part of the 

operation’s strategies. Western Power manages its 

network in a reasonable and appropriate manner 

considering the risk posed and funding available. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Report No. 14 of the Standing Committee on 
Public Administration
On 20 January 2012, the Standing Committee 

on Public Administration (Standing Committee) 

published its Report No.14 (‘Unassisted Failure’). 

The report commented on Western Power’s 

performance in several respects, including wood 

pole management, compliance and relationship with 

key regulators, parliamentary accountability and 

organisational culture. Western Power accepted 

the views of the Standing Committee, and in June 

2012, via the State Government’s response tabled in 

Parliament, provided a detailed action plan. 

Western Power has taken direct action to address 

the fi ndings of the Standing Committee’s report. In 

the 2014/15 fi nancial year, Western Power replaced 

17,765 wooden power poles and reinforced an 

additional 53,976 (30 June 2014: 23,711 and 67,641 

respectively). This sustained focus on wooden 

power pole management continues Western 

Power’s commitment to the initiatives implemented 

in response to the Standing Committee’s Report 

No. 14 (‘Unassisted Failure’) and the EnergySafety 

order 01-2009. During 2015/16 it is anticipated 

that EnergySafety will assess Western Power’s 

performance against this order. 

Impact on revenue due to changing customer 
consumption
Customers are increasingly deploying new 

technologies and changing their behaviour in 

response to emerging technologies and increased 

electricity costs. These factors will impact the way 

Western Power manages the network and the timing 

of when costs are recovered under the current 

regulatory regime. 

Overall, future volumes of electricity transported 

are likely to be affected by changing consumption 

patterns as a consequence of:

• changes in customer behaviour in response to 

increases in electricity prices

• increase in user installation of on-site energy 

production, e.g. photovoltaic systems

• early adoption of energy storage systems, e.g. 

batteries.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

Details of the number of meetings of the Board (and of its committees) that directors were eligible to attend 

and the number of meetings attended by each of the directors for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2015 are 

as follows:

Board People and Performance Committee Finance and Risk Committee

Attendee Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

C Beckett 3 3 - - - 1*

G Martin 3 2 - - - 1*

G Cash 20 20 6 6 - 7*

M Davies 20 20 - 5* 7 7

P Iancov 3 3 - - - 1*

P Underwood 20 20 - 4* 7 7

S Wilson 20 19 6 6 4 7^

A Mulgrew 18 17 6 5 - 1*

J Cahill 10 10 3 3 3 3

*   The director was not a member of the relevant committee, but attended as an invitee

^  The director was a member of the committee for only four of the seven meetings held during the fi nancial year. The three other meetings were   

    attended as an invitee.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Sam Barbaro was appointed Western Power’s 

General Counsel, Executive Manager Legal and 

Governance in December 2014. The role includes 

the Company Secretary function.

Mr Barbaro has been practicing law since the 1990s 

and has extensive experience in the energy and 

electricity sectors. After obtaining a law degree from 

The University of Western Australia, Mr Barbaro 

spent a decade practicing law in top tier fi rms, 

with specifi c expertise in corporate law, energy 

and resources, administrative law, compliance and 

regulatory, and governance. He then spent eight 

years in senior in-house corporate counsel positions, 

which included governance and company secretary 

functions.

Mr Barbaro is a non-executive director of the Fiona 

Wood Foundation, a member of the Association of 

Corporate Counsel Australia, an associate member 

of the Australian Institute of Management and a 

fellow of Leadership Western Australia.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

Western Power’s safety, health and environmental 

policy encompasses environmental management 

principles including compliance, minimising impact, 

preservation of biodiversity and empowering the 

workforce to identify and resolve situations that 

may be hazardous to the environment. Western 

Power sites are subject to State and Commonwealth 

environmental legislation and regulations, with some 

locations and projects covered by specifi c approval 

conditions and environmental licences and permits 

issued by the State.

Western Power holds a purpose permit to allow 

self-assessment for the clearing of native vegetation 

during operational work. The permit conditions 

require annual internal and external audits which 

were completed with no signifi cant changes to the 

requirements in 2014/15. In the year, 21 clearing 

permits were issued under this purpose permit, for 

the clearing of 1.43 hectares of native vegetation 

which included 0.11 hectares classifi ed as having 

biodiversity value. 
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Western Power has also been working within 

the Department of Mines and Petroleum to close 

remediation notices issued under the Dangerous 

Goods Safety Act 2004 (WA) and resolve 

outstanding licencing requirements. This work will 

continue in 2015/16.

Western Power is required to report signifi cant 

environmental incidents to its regulators. During 

the 2014/15 fi nancial year Western Power reported 

12 environmental incidents relating to oil spills 

and vegetation damage. Western Power has not 

been notifi ed by the Western Australian Planning 

Commission or any other relevant planning bodies 

of any non-compliance related to section 60(6) of 

the Act.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

Western Power has entered into an indemnity deed 

with each non-executive director. The respective 

deeds provide that:

• Western Power indemnifi es the non-executive 

director against all liabilities and costs relating 

to proceedings that are anticipated, threatened 

or commenced against the director in relation 

to matters arising in the course of the director 

acting in connection with the affairs of Western 

Power or otherwise concerning the director 

holding offi ce as a director of Western Power

•  the indemnity does not extend to claims against 

the director by Western Power or a subsidiary, 

or to any liability or claim arising out of conduct 

involving a criminal act, dishonesty or lack of 

good faith.

Western Power holds a directors’ and offi cers’ liability 

insurance policy. Subject to the terms and conditions 

of the policy, this cover will pay to or on behalf of 

an insured person, or reimburse Western Power 

for any loss paid to an insured person, in relation 

to a claim or claims made against them jointly or 

severally during the period of insurance by reason 

of any wrongful act (as defi ned by the policy) in their 

capacity as a director or offi cer of Western Power.

At the date of this report no claims have been made 

against the directors and offi cers component of

the policy.

AUDITOR

Under the Act, the Auditor General for Western 

Australia has been appointed as Western Power’s 

independent auditor. The Auditor General Act 2006 

(WA) provides that the auditor can conduct audits 

in the manner he or she sees fi t and is not subject 

to direction by any person about the way in which 

those powers are exercised.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

Neither the Offi ce of the Auditor General nor his 

agent provided any non-audit services during the 

fi nancial year ended 30 June 2015 (30 June 2014: nil).

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

Amounts presented in the directors’ report have 

been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, 

unless otherwise stated.

OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Freedom of information
Subject to certain exceptions, the Freedom of 

Information Act 1992 (WA) (FOI Act) requires 

Western Power to provide access to its documents 

where an application for access is made. The FOI 

Act also requires Western Power to publish an up-

to-date information statement about the corporation.

An up-to-date information statement, as well as a 

guide on how to make an application under the FOI 

Act are published on Western Power’s website and 

can be inspected free of cost at any time.

Observance of Western Power Code of Conduct 
Section 33 of the Act requires the Board to report to 

the Minister on the observance of Western Power’s 

Code of Conduct by members of staff. This report 

is required at the same time as delivering Western 

Power’s annual report.

The Board confi rms that consistent with section 31 

of the Act, the Code of Conduct was developed 

after consultation with the Commissioner for Public 

Sector Standards and was fi rst adopted by the 

Board at its meeting on 24 March 2006. The Code 

of Conduct has been amended from time to time.
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The Code of Conduct has been circulated to 

Western Power’s employees and is available on the 

intranet for employee reference.

As permitted by the Act, the Board has delegated 

accountability through the Chief Executive Offi cer 

to formal leaders in Western Power to ensure 

observance of the standards of conduct and 

integrity by members of staff.

Record keeping 
Western Power maintains and supports quality 

record keeping practices in its day-to-day business 

activities. Records are managed according to the 

requirements of the State Records Act 2000 (WA) 

and Western Power’s approved record-keeping plan.

Regular reviews are conducted of Western Power’s 

record-keeping systems, training and practices to 

ensure they are effi cient and effective and refl ect any 

new business requirements.

New staff and contractors are required to complete 

a compliance education program as well as attend 

compulsory training of the document management 

system. Training programs are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis to ensure they refl ect any new 

business requirements. 

Electoral Act 1907 (WA) (section 175ZE)
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 (WA), the following expenditure was incurred by 

Western Power during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2015. The expenditure includes costs associated with 

public safety and education campaigns, planned outage notifi cations, self-read meter mail outs, billing and 

recruiting.

Category Amount ($) Recipient Nature of work

Advertising agencies 209,235 Adcorp Australia Various including: notifi cation of planned works and 

outages, staff recruitment and other media bookings

1,517,489 Brand Agency Public safety campaigns

54,989 Equilibrium Interactive Website and public education

3,685 Meerkats Community communications

99,728 Workhouse Advertising Customer communications materials

72,913 Eight Steps West Conduct/provide employee services

Sub-total 1,958,039

Market research 18,406 Crowther - Blayne & Assoicates Community research

31,482 Faster Horses Industry safety research

413,394 Ipsos Various including: corporate reputation, customer 

service research and public safety campaign research

47,300 Taylor Nelson Sofres Business market research

Sub-total 510,582

Direct mail organisations 651,360 Bing Technologies Customer notifi cations

692,902 Fuji Xerox Businessforce Customer self-reader cards, notifi cations and invoicing

11,959 Quickmail Community engagement notifi cations

Sub-total 1,356,221

Media advertising 575,754 Carat Australia Public safety campaign media

Sub-total 575,754

Total expenditure 4,400,596
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PRINCIPLES USED TO DETERMINE THE 
NATURE AND AMOUNT OF REMUNERATION 

Western Power’s remuneration policy is to: 

• provide market competitive remuneration 

designed to attract, retain and motivate a skilled 

workforce with the capabilities and skills required 

to effectively achieve Western Power’s corporate 

objectives

• adopt a commercial approach to the 

management of remuneration, including the 

capacity to pay, a clear governance framework 

and any associated risks

• ensure employees are appropriately 

compensated according to the value of the work 

performed, the services they provide to the 

company and their personal performance.

Non-executive directors
The Minister approves the remuneration of all non-

executive directors. The remuneration framework 

for non-executive directors incorporates a fi xed 

remuneration and superannuation component. Non-

executive directors do not participate in any variable 

reward or ‘at-risk’ plan.

Chief Executive Offi cer and executives
The Minister approves changes to the Chief 

Executive Offi cer’s remuneration as recommended 

by the Board, via the People and Performance 

Committee who will seek external independent 

advice in forming its recommendations.

The Board approves the remuneration of the Chief 

Executive Offi cer’s direct reports following review 

and recommendations provided by the People and 

Performance Committee (on recommendation of the 

Chief Executive Offi cer). 

The Chief Executive Offi cer and executives 

remuneration framework is based upon a total 

remuneration approach that includes base salary, 

superannuation and benefi ts to refl ect the level of 

work, accountability and personal competency 

in the role. This component may be delivered 

as a combination of cash and prescribed non-

fi nancial benefi ts at the individual’s discretion. Total 

remuneration is reviewed annually on the basis 

of competitive market movement and personal 

performance. The Chief Executive Offi cer and 

executives do not participate in any variable reward 

or ‘at-risk’ plan.

Remuneration for executives is reviewed annually 

to ensure the level is market competitive while 

providing fl exibility to recognise high performing 

and high potential employees. There are no 

guaranteed remuneration increases included in any 

executive contracts.
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DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

Non-executive directors
In accordance with clause 13(c) of the fourth schedule to the Act, details of the nature and amount of each 

element of the remuneration paid to directors during the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 

2015 are set out in the following table.

Name
Financial 

year

Salary and 
fees

$’000

Non-
monetary 

benefi ts
$’000

Post-
employment

super. benefi ts
$’000

Other long-
term benefi ts

$’000

Termination 
benefi ts

$’000

Total benefi ts 
paid 

$’000

C Beckett

(from 29/04/2015) 

2014/15 21 - 2 - - 23

2013/14 - - - - - -

G Martin

(from 29/04/2015) 

2014/15 13 - 1 - - 14

2013/14 - - - - - -

G Cash 2014/15 33 - 37 - - 70

2013/14 43 - 22 - - 65

M Davies 2014/15 42 - 18 - - 60

2013/14 55 - 5 - - 60

P Iancov

(from 29/04/2015) 

2014/15 10 - 1 - - 11

2013/14 - - - - - -

P Underwood 2014/15 55 - 5 - - 60

2013/14 51 - 9 - - 60

S Wilson 2014/15 51 - 9 - - 60

2013/14 55 - 5 - - 60

A Mulgrew

(until 08/05/2015) 

2014/15 108 - 10 - - 118

2013/14 120 - 11 - - 131

J Cahill

(until 31/12/2014) 

2014/15 38 - 4 - - 42

2013/14 75 - 7 - - 82

Total 2014/15 371 - 87 - - 458

2013/14 399 - 59 - - 458

DIRECTORS’ REPORT REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)



Western Power Annual Report 2015        23

Five highest paid offi cers
In accordance with clause 13(c) of the fourth schedule to the Act, details of the nature and amount of each 

element of the remuneration paid to each of the fi ve highest paid offi cers of Western Power during the 

fi nancial year ended 30 June 2015 are provided below.

Name

Salary and
fees

$’000

Non-
monetary 

benefi ts
$’000

Post-
employment

super. benefi ts
$’000

Termination 
benefi ts*

$’000

Total benefi ts 
paid 

$’000

Long service 
leave accrued 

$’000

P Italiano 478 9 25 - 512 12

B Lacey 255 - 31 217 503 -

R Merryfull 41 - 18 385 444 -

S Walsh 374 16 37 - 427 9

D Fyfe 371 - 35 - 406 10

Total 1,519 25 146 602 2,292 31

*  Termination benefi ts are paid in line with contractual arrangements and are subject to taxation deductions required by law. They include

    payments of accrued leave.

Remuneration paid to executive offi cers
Western Power provides the following additional disclosure in relation to remuneration paid to designated 

executive offi cers who were employed by the business as at 30 June in each year.

Executive offi cers
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Total paid 2,381 2,747

Total paid ($’000)

Number of executive offi cers

2014/15 2013/14

$    0 -   $50 1 -

$  50 - $100 1 -

$201 - $250 - 1

$251 - $300 2 -

$351 - $400 1 4

$401 - $450 2 -

$451 - $500 - 2

$501 - $550 1 -

Total number of executive offi cers 8 7

DIRECTORS’ REPORT REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT - REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS 

Non-executive directors are subject to the duties and obligations prescribed by the Act. Under the Act, the 

Minister determines their remuneration. 

Directors’ appointments (as at 30 June 2015)

Position Term of agreement

C Beckett, Board Chair and non-

executive director

Appointed by the Governor of Western Australia (Governor) for a term commencing on 

29/04/2015 and expiring on 28/04/2018.

G Martin, Board Deputy Chair and 

non-executive director

Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 29/04/2015 and expiring on 

28/04/2018.

G Cash, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 27/07/2010 and reappointed for a 

further term expiring on 14/10/2016.

M Davies, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 01/04/2006 and reappointed for a 

further term expiring on 20/08/2014. In accordance with the Act, Mr Davies remains in offi ce 

until either he resigns or is replaced.

P Iancov, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 29/04/2015 and expiring on 

28/04/2017.

P Underwood, non-executive 

director

Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 25/05/2009 and reappointed for a 

further term expiring on 20/08/2015. In accordance with the Act, Mr Underwood remains in 

offi ce until either he resigns or is replaced.

S Wilson, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 28/12/2012 and expiring on 

27/12/2015.

The remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Offi cer and all other senior 

executives are formalised in ongoing employment agreements. 

Executives’ employment agreements (as at 30 June 2015)

Position Term of agreement

P Italiano, Chief Executive Offi cer Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 06/02/2012

S Barbaro, Executive Manager Legal and Governance Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 01/12/2014

G Chalkley, Chief Financial Offi cer Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 08/05/2015

D Fyfe, Executive Manager Asset Operations Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 05/08/2013

S McGoldrick, Executive Manager Asset Management Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 01/06/2015

C Parrotte, Executive Manager Network Planning and Operations Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 09/04/2012

S Walsh, Executive Manager Corporate Services Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 11/11/2013
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This directors’ report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors made on 24 August 2015.

Signed in Perth on: 24 August 2015

DIRECTORS’ REPORT - CONFIRMATION

G Martin

Board Deputy Chair
C Beckett

Board Chair
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT WESTERN POWER

The Board of Western Power is committed to a high level of corporate governance and fostering a culture 

that values safety, ethical behaviour, integrity, diversity and respect.

Western Power’s corporate governance disclosures are published on the Western Power website at:

www.westernpower.com.au/aboutus/corporategovernance/corporate_governance.html

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES
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Streamlined fi nancial statements
Western Power’s fi nancial statements have been presented in a style which attempts to make them more user-friendly, 

tailored and less complex for the reader. In support of this, the note disclosures have been grouped to more logically 

align with Western Power’s fi nancial performance being: ‘basis of preparation’; ‘profi t for the reporting year’; ‘operational 

assets and liabilities’; ‘debt and equity’; ‘other information’. Each section sets out the accounting policies applied in 

preparing the relevant notes. The purpose of this format is to provide readers with a clearer understanding

of Western Power’s fi nancial performance.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Income
 Revenue from rendering of services 4(b)(i) 1,763,849 1,641,355

 Other income 4(b)(ii) 3,580 7,515

Total income 1,767,429 1,648,870

Expenses
 Materials and services (264,513) (290,620)

 Employee related expenses 5(a) (246,103) (247,460)

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 5(b) (283,818) (259,767)

 Other expenses 5(c) (161,389) (237,644)

 Borrowing costs 5(d) (315,524) (322,592)

Total expenses (1,271,347) (1,358,083)

Profi t before income tax equivalent expense 496,082 290,787
Income tax equivalent expense 6(b) (147,406) (87,841)

Profi t for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 348,676 202,946

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be re-classifi ed to profi t and loss

 Fair value of cash fl ow hedges 21(b) (34,932) (49,933)

 Tax equivalent on fair value of cash fl ow hedges 21(b) 10,480 14,980

Items that will not be re-classifi ed to profi t and loss

 Remeasurements of retirement benefi t obligations 21(c) (29) 78

 Tax equivalent on remeasurements of retirement benefi t obligations 21(c) 9 13

Total other comprehensive income for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent (24,472) (34,862)

Total comprehensive income for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 324,204 168,084

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Assets
Current assets
 Cash and cash equivalents 8 26,940 25,471

 Trade and other receivables 9 226,256 233,211

 Inventories 10 115,040 133,692

Total current assets 368,236 392,374

Non-current assets
 Trade and other receivables 9 463 526

 Derivative fi nancial instruments 18 4,707 -

 Property, plant and equipment 11 9,282,794 8,557,355

 Intangible assets 11 123,575 131,858

Total non-current assets 9,411,539 8,689,739

Total assets 9,779,775 9,082,113

Liabilities
Current liabilities
 Trade and other payables 12 138,766 243,857

 Borrowings 17 27,896 13,148

 Derivative fi nancial instruments 18 21,221 11,763

 Provisions 13 89,844 79,376

 Deferred income 14 60,944 85,047

Total current liabilities 338,671 433,191

Non-current liabilities
 Trade and other payables 12 6,657 7,108

 Borrowings 17 7,192,510 6,820,166

 Derivative fi nancial instruments 18 20,411 26,269

 Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 15 481,332 344,415

 Provisions 13 34,528 31,057

 Deferred income 14 4,101 3,567

Total non-current liabilities 7,739,539 7,232,582

Total liabilities 8,078,210 7,665,773

Net assets 1,701,565 1,416,340

Equity
 Contributed equity 20 989,037 896,101

 Reserve 21(b) (52,349) (27,856)

 Retained earnings 21(c) 764,877 548,095

Total equity 1,701,565 1,416,340

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015 

Note

Contributed 
equity
$’000

Hedging 
reserve

$’000

Retained 
earnings

$’000
Total equity

$’000

At 1 July 2014 896,101 (27,856) 548,095 1,416,340

Comprehensive income 21

 Profi t, net of tax equivalent - - 348,676 348,676

 Other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - (24,452) (20) (24,472)

 Other - (41) 41 -

Total comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - (24,493) 348,697 324,204

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
 Contributions of equity 20 92,936 - - 92,936

 Dividends provided for or paid 22 - - (131,915) (131,915)

Total transactions with owners 92,936 - (131,915) (38,979)

At 30 June 2015 989,037 (52,349) 764,877 1,701,565

At 1 July 2013 821,239 7,097 469,453 1,297,789

Comprehensive income 21

 Profi t, net of tax equivalent - - 202,946 202,946

 Other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - (34,953) 91 (34,862)

Total comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - (34,953) 203,037 168,084

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
 Contributions of equity 20 74,862 - - 74,862

 Dividends provided for or paid 22 - - (124,395) (124,395)

Total transactions with owners 74,862 - (124,395) (49,533)

At 30 June 2014 896,101 (27,856) 548,095 1,416,340

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Cash fl ows from operating activities
 Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax) 1,733,654 1,686,924

 Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax) (653,019) (724,015)

 Contributions to tariff equalisation fund (136,000) (209,000)

 Other income 4,246 7,463

Net cash infl ows from operating activities 8(c) 948,881 761,372

Cash fl ows from investing activities
 Payments for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (957,358) (1,014,457)

 Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15,414 4,360

Net cash outfl ows from investing activities (941,944) (1,010,097)

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities
 Proceeds from borrowings 4,443,400 9,405,000

 Repayments of borrowings (4,157,123) (8,752,722)

 Interest received 249 719

 Borrowing costs paid (253,015) (351,899)

 Proceeds from contributed equity 92,936 74,862

 Distributions to equity holder (131,915) (124,395)

Net cash (outfl ows)/infl ows from fi nancing activities (5,468) 251,565

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,469 2,840

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the reporting year 25,471 22,631

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the reporting year 8(b) 26,940 25,471

Refer to note 8(d) for details of the non-cash investing and fi nancing activities.

The above statement of cash fl ows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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In this section
This section presents the signifi cant accounting policies adopted by Western Power in the preparation of these fi nancial 

statements. Where an accounting policy is specifi c to one note, the policy is described in the note to which it relates. All 

principal policies have been consistently applied to the reporting years presented, unless otherwise stated.

SECTION 1: BASIS OF PREPARATION

1. Reporting entity

 Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) is incorporated under the Electricity

 Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act) and domiciled in Australia. The registered offi ce and principal place of

 business is 363 Wellington Street, Perth, Western Australia 6000.

 Western Power is primarily involved in the building, maintenance and operation of the electricity network throughout

 the majority of southern Western Australia. (For a more detailed description of Western Power’s operations and

 principal activities refer to the ‘review of operations’ and ‘principal activities’ sections of the directors’ report

 included in this fi nancial report).

 These fi nancial statements cover Western Power as an individual entity and were authorised for issue by the

 directors on 24 August 2015. The directors have the power to amend and reissue the fi nancial report.

2. Basis of accounting

 These fi nancial statements are general purpose fi nancial statements that have been prepared in accordance with

 Australian accounting standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards

 Board (AASB) (including Australian interpretations) and Schedule 4 of the Act. On operation of the Act, Schedule 4

 was aligned and cross referenced to the relevant sections of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

 Western Power has been classifi ed to be a not-for-profi t entity and accordingly applies the not-for-profi t elections

 available in the Australian accounting standards where applicable.

 New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted
 The following accounting standards and amendments effective after the 30 June 2015 reporting period have been

 identifi ed as those which may impact Western Power in the reporting year of initial application.

Title and topic Issued
Effective date to 
Western Power

Impact to 
Western Power 

in 2014/15 
reporting year

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

December 

2009
1 July 2018 No impact

 − Addresses the classifi cation, measurement and derecognition of fi nancial 

assets and fi nancial liabilities, and introduces new rules for hedge accounting.

 − In December 2014, the AASB made further changes to the classifi cation and 

measurement rules and also introduced a new impairment model. These latest 

amendments now complete the new fi nancial instruments standard.

The standard is not applicable to Western Power until the reporting year ended 

30 June 2019. The full impact, if any, is still to be assessed.

AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

December 

2014
1 July 2017* No impact

 − Replaces AASB 118 Revenue which covers contracts for goods and services, 

and AASB 111 Construction contracts which covers construction contracts.

 − Establishes the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or 

service transfers to a customer - so the notion of control replaces the existing 

notion of risks and rewards.

The standard is not applicable to Western Power until the reporting year ended 

30 June 2018*. The full impact, if any, is still to be assessed.

* The effective date of this standard may be deferred subject to the mandatory application date agreed by the International Accounting

   Standards Board (IASB) for the equivalent international standard 

           

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SECTION 1: BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2. Basis of accounting (continued)

 Accrual accounting and historical cost convention
 These fi nancial statements are prepared on the accrual accounting basis and in accordance with the historical cost

 convention, except for the following:

• derivative fi nancial instruments measured at fair value

• certain provisions and employee benefi t liabilities measured at present value, less the fair value of any defi ned 

benefi t plan assets

• cash fl ow information prepared on a cash accounting basis.

 Comparatives
 Comparatives amounts are for the period from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014. Where appropriate, these amounts

 have been re-presented and re-classifi ed to ensure comparability with the current reporting year.

 Going concern
 These fi nancial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. Western Power has reasonable grounds to

 believe it is able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable, considering the unused portion of

 the available facility agreement (refer to note 16(d)(i)) and the forecasted net profi ts and positive operating cash fl ows

 in 2015/16.

 Working capital
 At 30 June 2015, Western Power reported a working capital surplus of $29.565 million (30 June 2014: $40.817

 million defi cit). Current liabilities include deferred income relating to developer and customer contributions to the

 value of $60.944 million (30 June 2014: $85.047 million) which usually do not require an outfl ow of cash resources.

 When these amounts are excluded, working capital shows current assets exceeding current liabilities by $90.509

 million (30 June 2014: $44.230 million).         

 Foreign currency translation
 Functional and presentation currency:

 This fi nancial report is presented in Australian dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency of Western

 Power. All fi nancial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand ($’000)

 unless otherwise stated.           

 Transactions and balances:

 Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of Western Power are translated into Australian dollars

 using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities

 that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at closing exchange rates.    

 All foreign currency translation differences are recognised on a net basis in ‘other expenses’ in profi t and loss, except:

• when deferred in equity for translation differences of qualifying cash fl ow hedges, to the extent the hedge is 

effective

• when the translation differences deferred to equity for qualifying cash fl ow hedges are transferred to the 

carrying value of non-fi nancial assets.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SECTION 1: BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2. Basis of accounting (continued)

 Goods and services tax (GST)
 Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, except when the GST incurred

 is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost acquisition of the

 asset or as part of the expense.

 Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST

 recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included in other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

 Cash fl ows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash fl ows arising from investing or fi nancing

 activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash fl ows.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

 The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with Australian accounting standards requires management

 to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

 amounts of income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical

 experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a fi nancial impact on Western

 Power and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are

 recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and any future years affected.

 The areas where estimates and assumptions are signifi cant to the fi nancial statements, or a higher degree of

 judgement or complexity is involved, are listed below and described in more detail in the related notes:

Critical accounting estimates and judgements Note

Unbilled network tariff revenue 4(c), 9(c)

Impairment of non-fi nancial assets 11(f)

Present value of employee benefi t liabilities 13(c)

Fair values of derivative fi nancial instruments 19(b)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In this section
This section presents details of Western Power’s profi t results and performance for the reporting period by reference to 

the services rendered and operating expenses incurred.

SECTION 2: PROFIT FOR THE REPORTING YEAR

4. Income

 (a) Accounting policy

  Revenues are recognised to the extent it is probable that future economic benefi ts will fl ow to Western Power

  and the revenue can be measured reliably. It is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

  or receivable, being the invoiced amount including interest on overdue amounts, net of the amount of goods

  and services tax. Revenue also includes an estimate for the value of unbilled network tariff services. The

  following specifi c recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:   

  Network services revenue
  Western Power receives network services revenue from the transmission and distribution of electricity,

  and provision of related services including system operations and sales of materials. Network services revenue

  is recognised when the service is provided. As at each reporting date, network services revenue and trade

  receivables include amounts attributable to ‘unbilled network tariff revenue’. Unbilled network tariff revenue is

  an estimate of electricity transported to customers that has not been billed at the reporting date.

  Western Power is subject to an access arrangement, which determines the revenues receivable for its

  network services through a revenue cap. No liabilities are recognised when revenues received or receivable

  exceed the maximum amount permitted by the revenue cap and adjustments will be made to future prices to

  refl ect this over-recovery. Similarly, no assets are recognised when the access arrangement permits

  adjustments to be made to future prices in respect of an under-recovery of the revenue cap.

  Developer and customer contributions
  Western Power receives developer and customer contributions toward the extension or augmentation of

  electricity infrastructure to facilitate network connection. Contributions can be in the form of either cash

  contributions or gifted network assets. Cash contributions received are initially deferred and subsequently

  recognised as revenue when the developers or customers are connected to the network in accordance with

  the terms of the contributions. Gifted network assets are recognised as revenue at the point the assets are

  energised and are measured at their fair value. The network assets resulting from contributions received or

  gifted are recognised as property, plant and equipment and depreciated over their expected useful life. 

  Other income
  Western Power receives other income from the provision of services incidental to the core activities of the

  business. Other income is recognised when the service is provided.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SECTION 2: PROFIT FOR THE REPORTING YEAR (CONTINUED)

4. Income (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in profi t and loss

  (i) Revenue from rendering of services

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Network services revenue:

 Transmission tariff services 4(c) 350,264 363,667

 Distribution tariff services 4(c) 1,043,275 968,278

 Other services 118,000 117,959

1,511,539 1,449,904

Developer and customer contributions 252,310 191,451

Total revenue from rendering of services 1,763,849 1,641,355

  (ii) Other income

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Rent 1,659 1,983

Insurance recoveries 1,267 4,272

Interest 249 719

Other 405 541

3,580 7,515

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled network tariff revenue

  Transmission and distribution network tariff revenue includes $181.296 million for unbilled services (30 June

  2014: $174.170 million). This is consistent with the revenue recognition methodology adopted in prior years and

  refl ects the billing profi le of Western Power customers. The unbilled network tariff revenue is calculated using

  projected revenue assumptions based on historical and budget data for unread, and as such unbilled meters

  as at the end of the reporting year.

5. Expenses

 Profi t before income tax equivalent includes the following specifi c expenses:

 (a) Employee related expenses

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Wages, salaries and other employee benefi ts (208,907) (212,579)

Superannuation:

 Defi ned contribution plans (36,949) (34,386)

 Net defi ned benefi t expense 13(b)(i) (247) (495)

(37,196) (34,881)

Total employee related expenses (246,103) (247,460)

  Refer to the directors’ report included in this fi nancial report for details of the remuneration paid to the directors

  and executive offi cers.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SECTION 2: PROFIT FOR THE REPORTING YEAR (CONTINUED)

5. Expenses (continued)

 (b) Depreciation and amortisation expense

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Depreciation expense: 11(e)

 Buildings (4,754) (4,576)

 Plant and equipment (264,711) (237,063)

 Capitalised depreciation 9,831 8,183

(259,634) (233,456)

Amortisation expense: 11(e)

 Computer software (23,238) (20,935)

 Intellectual property (946) (5,376)

(24,184) (26,311)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense (283,818) (259,767)

  Refer to notes 11(a) and 11(b) respectively for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods and useful

  economic lives applied.

 (c) Other expenses

  (i) Accounting policy: operating leases

   Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefi ts of ownership of the asset are

   classifi ed as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from

   the lessor) are expensed to profi t and loss in the reporting periods in which they are incurred, being

   representative of the pattern of benefi ts derived from the leased assets.

  (ii) Amounts recognised in profi t and loss

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Tariff equalisation fund (136,000) (209,000)

Insurance (15,473) (14,578)

Operating lease costs (7,396) (5,066)

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,343) (7,439)

Impairment of trade receivables 16(c)(i) (742) (1,083)

Remuneration of auditors (428) (430)

Other (7) (48)

(161,389) (237,644)

   Refer to note 23 for details of the fees paid, or due and payable, for services provided by the auditors during

   the reporting year.

 (d) Borrowing costs

  (i) Accounting policy

   Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (being

   assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) form part of the

   cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred. Capitalised borrowings costs are

   included in borrowing costs paid in the statement of cash fl ows.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SECTION 2: PROFIT FOR THE REPORTING YEAR (CONTINUED)

5. Expenses (continued)

 (d) Borrowing costs (continued)

  (ii) Amounts recognised in profi t and loss

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Domestic currency loans not at fair value through profi t and loss (320,688) (332,630)

Fair value loss on cash fl ow hedges (3,548) (143)

Amortisation of premium on restructured borrowings (1,380) -

Interest rate swaps (929) (524)

Unwinding of discount on contributory extension scheme (906) (988)

Other 32 (31)

Capitalised borrowing costs 11,895 11,724

(315,524) (322,592)

   Refer to note 11(e)(i) for the weighted average interest rate used to capitalise borrowing costs.

6. Income tax equivalent expense

 (a) Accounting policy

  National taxation equivalent regime
  Western Power is exempt from the Commonwealth of Australia’s Income Tax Assessment Acts but makes

  income tax equivalent payments to the Western Australian State Government. The calculation of the liability in

  respect of these taxes is governed by the Income Tax Administration Acts and the National Taxation Equivalent

  Regime guidelines as agreed by the State Government.

  Current tax equivalent
  The income tax equivalent expense for a reporting year comprises current and deferred tax equivalents. It is

  recognised in profi t and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive

  income or directly in equity.

  Current tax equivalent is the expected tax equivalent receivable or payable on the taxable income or loss for

  the reporting year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment

  to the tax equivalent in respect of previous years.

  Deferred tax equivalent
  Deferred tax equivalent is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the

  carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for fi nancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation

  purposes. Deferred tax equivalent is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied when the asset

  is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the

  reporting date.

  A deferred tax equivalent asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profi ts

  will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax equivalent assets are reviewed at the end

  of each reporting year and are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax equivalent

  benefi t will be realised.

  Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset

  current tax equivalent assets and liabilities, and when the deferred tax equivalent balances relate to the same

  taxation authority.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SECTION 2: PROFIT FOR THE REPORTING YEAR (CONTINUED)

6. Income tax equivalent expense (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in profi t and loss

2014/15 2013/14

Current
$’000

Deferred
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Deferred
$’000

Total
$’000

Income tax equivalent expense - (147,323) (147,323) - (87,252) (87,252)

Adjustment for income tax equivalent of prior years - (83) (83) - (589) (589)

- (147,406) (147,406) - (87,841) (87,841)

Income tax equivalent expense is attributable to:

 Profi t for the reporting year (147,406) (87,841)

Deferred income tax equivalent (revenue)/expense included in income tax equivalent expense comprises:

 (Decrease)/increase in deferred tax equivalent assets (note 15) (10,961) 41,533

 Increase in deferred tax equivalent liabilities (note 15) (136,445) (129,374)

Total income tax equivalent expense (147,406) (87,841)

 (c) Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense to prima facie tax equivalent payable

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Profi t before income tax equivalent expense 496,082 290,787

Income tax equivalent at the Australian tax rate of 30% (30 June 2014: 30%) (148,825) (87,236)

Income tax equivalent effect of amounts not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

 Non deductable expenses 172 (67)

 Research and development incentives 1,330 51

Current income tax equivalent expense (147,323) (87,252)

Adjustment for deferred tax equivalent of prior years (83) (589)

Total income tax equivalent expense (147,406) (87,841)

 (d) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Changes in the fair value of cash fl ow hedges 11,545 15,023

Re-classifi cations of cash fl ow hedges to profi t and loss (1,065) (43)

Remeasurements of retirement benefi t obligations 9 13

10,489 14,993
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In this section
This section identifi es the assets used to generate Western Power’s operating profi t and the liabilities incurred as a 

result. (Refer to section 4 for the liabilities relating to Western Power’s fi nancing activities).

SECTION 3: OPERATIONAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

7. Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities

 Western Power uses a range of fi nancial instruments to support the operations of the business. The carrying

 amounts recognised as at the reporting date are presented below:

2014/15 2013/14

Note
Current

$’000

Non-
current
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Non-
current

$’000
Total

$’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 26,940 - 26,940 25,471 - 25,471

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) 9 204,523 463 204,986 198,739 526 199,265

Derivative fi nancial instruments 18 - 4,707 4,707 - - -

Total fi nancial assets 231,463 5,170 236,633 224,210 526 224,736

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 138,766 6,657 145,423 243,857 7,108 250,965

 Trade payables and accruals 100,790 - 100,790 193,291 - 193,291

 Other payables 35,556 - 35,556 46,939 - 46,939

 Contributory extension scheme 2,420 6,657 9,077 3,627 7,108 10,735

Borrowings 17 27,896 7,192,510 7,220,406 13,148 6,820,166 6,833,314

 Domestic working capital facility 27,700 - 27,700 13,000 - 13,000

 Domestic currency loans - 7,134,170 7,134,170 - 6,812,047 6,812,047

 Accrued interest 196 58,340 58,536 148 8,119 8,267

Derivative fi nancial instruments 18 21,221 20,411 41,632 11,763 26,269 38,032

Total fi nancial liabilities 187,883 7,219,578 7,407,461 268,768 6,853,543 7,122,311

 Details on the accounting policies for the recognition, measurement and impairment of the above instruments are

 set out in the relevant notes.

 (a) Fair values of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities

  Other than disclosed below, the fair values of Western Power’s fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities are

  assumed to approximate the above carrying amounts.

2014/15 2013/14

Note

Carrying 
amount

$’000
Fair value

$’000

Carrying 
amount

$’000
Fair value

$’000

Contributory extension scheme (current fi nancial liabilities) 12 2,420 2,420 3,627 3,627

Contributory extension scheme (non-current fi nancial liabilities) 12 6,657 9,231 7,108 10,471

Domestic currency loans (non-current fi nancial liabilities) 17 7,134,170 7,424,751 6,812,047 7,093,681

  (i) Trade and other receivables and payables

   The fair value of receivables and payables with a remaining life of less than one year is deemed to be the

   notional amount due to their short-term nature. The fair value of all other receivables and payables is

   estimated as the present value of future cash fl ows, discounted using the current market rates of interest

   available for similar receivables and payables, unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
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SECTION 3: OPERATIONAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

7. Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities (continued)

 (a) Fair values of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities (continued)

  (ii) Derivative fi nancial instruments

   The fair value of derivative fi nancial instruments in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the

   end of the reporting period. For derivatives not traded in active markets the valuation techniques in

   note 19(b) are used. These techniques result in fair values classifi ed as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as

   defi ned in note 19(a)) because either the inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is

   independently calculated by the provider of the instrument.

  (iii) Contributory extension scheme

   The fair value of the contributory extension scheme is calculated by discounting the expected future

   payments using the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) zero coupon rates whose terms most

   closely match the terms of the related payables. The average coupon rate used for discounting at 30 June

   2015 is 2.8 per cent (30 June 2014: 3.5 per cent). The fair value is classifi ed as level 2 in the fair value

   hierarchy (as defi ned in note 19(a)) because the inputs are based on observable market data.

  (iv) Domestic currency loans  

   The fair value of borrowings is calculated by discounting the expected future principal and interest

   cash fl ows using the interest rates presented in the table below. This is except for borrowings linked to

   the consumer price index (CPI), which are independently fair valued by the WATC, the provider of these

   instruments.

2014/15 2013/14

WATC yield curve 2.2% - 4.0% 2.8% - 4.5%

Bank bill swap (BBSW) reference rate 2.2% 2.7%

Australian dollar (AUD) interest rate swap curve 2.1% - 3.4% 2.7% - 4.1%

   The fair value of borrowings is classifi ed as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defi ned in note 19(a))

   because either the inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is independently calculated

   by the provider of the borrowings.

 (b) Recognised fair value measurements

  Refer to note 19 for details of the assets and liabilities recognised and measured at fair value in the fi nancial

  statements as at the reporting date.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

 (a) Accounting policy

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, deposits held at call with fi nancial institutions and other

  short-term deposits that have an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known

  amounts of cash.            

  For the purpose of the statement of cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and deposits as

  defi ned above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. As at 30 June 2015, Western Power did not have a bank

  overdraft (30 June 2014: nil).
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SECTION 3: OPERATIONAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

8. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

Current
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Cash at bank 26,940 25,471

26,940 25,471

  Cash at bank earns interest at fl oating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

  Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the

  immediate cash requirements of Western Power and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

  As at 30 June 2015, Western Power did not have any short-term deposits (30 June 2014: nil). 

 (c) Reconciliation of profi t to net cash infl ows from operating activities

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Profi t for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 348,676 202,946

Non-cash items:

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 5(b) 283,818 259,767

 Written down value on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16,757 11,799

 Non-cash capital contributions 8(d) (147,877) (59,138)

 Non-cash employee related expenses (29) 78

Items classifi ed as investing and fi nancing activities:

 Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15,414) (4,360)

 Interest income 4(b)(ii) (249) (719)

 Borrowing costs 5(d)(ii) 315,524 322,592

Movements in operating assets and liabilities:

 Movement in trade and other receivables (4,766) (15,270)

 Movement in inventories 18,652 (1,690)

 Movement in trade and other payables (4,970) (25,546)

 Movement in provisions 14,922 6,440

 Movement in deferred income (23,569) (23,368)

 Movement in deferred tax equivalent liabilities 147,406 87,841

Net cash infl ows from operating activities 948,881 761,372

 (d) Non-cash investing and fi nancing activities

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Gifted network assets 11(e)(i) 147,877 59,138

9. Trade and other receivables

 (a) Accounting policy

  Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, being the value of the invoice sent to the

  customer, and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. Trade receivables also

  include an estimate for the value of unbilled network tariff revenue.

  Trade and other receivables are classifi ed as current assets unless collection is not expected for more than

  12 months after the reporting date. Where payments are due after one year, they are measured at their net

  present value to refl ect the economic cost of the delayed payment. 
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9. Trade and other receivables (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  Impairment
  Trade and other receivables are determined to be impaired when objective evidence exists that Western

  Power will not be able to collect all amounts due. The amount impaired is the difference between the carrying

  value of the receivable and the net present value of estimated future cash fl ows discounted at the original

  effective interest rate. Cash fl ows relating to short term receivables are not discounted if the effect of

  discounting would be immaterial. Amounts impaired are recognised in profi t and loss.

  When a trade receivable for which an impairment provision has been recognised becomes uncollectible in a

  subsequent reporting year it is written off against the provision account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

  written off are credited to profi t and loss.

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

  Trade and other receivables represent amounts due from customers for services provided or goods sold in

  the ordinary course of business. They are usually settled on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually

  agreed otherwise.

2014/15 2013/14

Note
Current

$’000

Non-
current
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Non-
current

$’000
Total

$’000

Trade receivables 9(c) 204,688 - 204,688 198,140 - 198,140

Provision for impairment of trade receivables 9(d) (1,311) - (1,311) (1,180) - (1,180)

203,377 - 203,377 196,960 - 196,960

Prepayments 21,733 - 21,733 34,472 - 34,472

Other receivables 1,146 463 1,609 1,779 526 2,305

226,256 463 226,719 233,211 526 233,737

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled trade receivables

  Trade receivables include unbilled network tariff revenue of $181.296 million (30 June 2014: $174.170 million).

  Refer to note 4(c) for further details about the estimation of this amount. 

 (d) Impaired trade receivables

  Refer to notes 16(c)(i) and 16(c)(ii) respectively for details of the trade receivables ‘impaired’ and ‘past due but

  not impaired’ as at the reporting date.

10. Inventories

 (a) Accounting policy

  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the

  weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them

  to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

  of business, less the estimated completion and selling costs.
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SECTION 3: OPERATIONAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

10. Inventories (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

  Inventories consist of materials required for the maintenance and operation of the network, as well as for

  general construction works.

Current
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Raw materials and stores 115,040 133,692

115,040 133,692

 (c) Amounts recognised in profi t and loss

  Inventories expensed to profi t and loss during the year ended 30 June 2015 were $74.195 million (30 June

  2014: $62.508 million).

  The write-down of inventory to net realisable value during the year ended 30 June 2015 was $4.392 million

  (30 June 2014: $0.733 million). This expense has been recognised in ‘materials and services’ in the statement

  of comprehensive income.

11. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment

  Cost
  Property, plant and equipment represent the capital works and plant required for the operation of the business,

  and is recognised at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment losses.

  Historical cost is determined as the fair value of the asset at the date of acquisition or construction and

  includes all expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. Cost may also

  include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash fl ow hedges of foreign currency

  purchases of property, plant and equipment.

  The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and labour, and any other costs, directly

  attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Gifted network assets are

  recognised at fair value at the point the assets are energised.

  Subsequent costs are included in property, plant and equipment only when it is probable the item associated

  with the cost will generate future economic benefi ts and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying

  amounts of items replaced are derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance plus minor capital assets less

  than $5,000 are expensed to profi t and loss during the reporting year in which they are incurred.

  Depreciation
  In order to recognise the loss of service potential of property, plant and equipment, depreciation is calculated

  using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives presented below, making allowances

  where appropriate for residual values.

Category of property, plant and equipment     Years

Substations, transformers, poles and cables 45 - 50

Buildings 40

Land improvements and infrastructure 25

Meters, streetlights 20 - 25

Pole reinforcements, smart meters 15

Furniture and fi ttings, refurbishments, other plant and equipment 10

Communications 7 - 10

Fleet 5 - 10

Computer hardware 4

Leasehold improvements lease life
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11. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment (continued)

  Property, plant and equipment received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation is depreciated over  

  their residual useful economic lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land, easements and assets in the  

  course of construction.

  The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment are reviewed

  annually, and adjusted as appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised as a

  change in accounting estimate. As at 30 June 2015, Western Power did not recognise any changes in

  depreciation estimates (30 June 2014: nil).

  Rehabilitation costs
  Upon recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of the item includes the present value

  of the anticipated costs of rehabilitating the site on which it is located.

  Derecognition
  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefi ts

  are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of

  an asset are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profi t and loss.

  Leases
  Leases where the lessee retains substantially all the risks and benefi ts of ownership of the asset are classifi ed

  as fi nance leases. As at 30 June 2015, Western Power did not have any fi nance leases (30 June 2014: nil). 

 (b) Accounting policy: intangible assets

  Cost
  Intangible assets represent identifi able capitalised software costs and intellectual property, and are recognised

  at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment losses. Subsequent

  costs are included in intangible assets only when it is probable the item associated with the cost will generate

  future economic benefi ts and the cost can be measured reliably.

  Internally generated intangible assets are recognised only if an asset is created that can be identifi ed; it is

  probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefi ts; and that the development cost of the

  asset can be measured reliably. Where no internally generated asset can be recognised the development

  expenditure is expensed to profi t and loss.

  Amortisation
  In order to recognise the loss of service potential of intangible assets, amortisation is calculated using the

  straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives presented below, making allowances where

  appropriate for residual values.          

Category of intangible assets     Years

Intellectual property 3 - 25

Software (major developments/enhancements) 5 - 10

Software (minor purchases/enhancements) 2.5

  The residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods of intangible assets are reviewed annually, and

  adjusted as appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised as a change in

  accounting estimate. As at 30 June 2015, Western Power did not recognise any changes in amortisation

  estimates (30 June 2014: nil).
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11. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (b) Accounting policy: intangible assets (continued)

  Derecognition
  An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefi ts are expected to arise

  from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset are

  determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profi t and loss.

 (c) Impairment of non-fi nancial assets

  At each reporting date, Western Power considers any indicators of impairment to its non-fi nancial assets, that

  is, events or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying value may not be fully recoverable. An

  impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable

  amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of an asset’s or groups of assets (being cash generating units

  (CGU)) value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual

  asset, unless the asset does not generate cash infl ows that are largely independent of those from other assets

  or groups of assets.

  As a not-for-profi t entity, Western Power determines value in use using the depreciated replacement cost of the

  asset when the future economic benefi ts of the asset are not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to

  generate net cash infl ows and where Western Power would, if deprived of the assets, replace its remaining

  future economic benefi ts.

  Impairment losses are recognised in profi t and loss and, where material, are disclosed separately. Impairment

  losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has

  decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates

  used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s

  carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation

  or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

 (d) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

Freehold 
land

$’000
Buildings

$’000

Plant and 
equipment

$’000

Works 
under 

construction
$’000

Total 
plant and 

equipment
$’000

Computer 
software

$’000

Intellectual 
property

$’000

Total 
intangible 

assets
$’000

Cost 129,376 168,094 10,306,081 315,968 10,919,519 278,625 12,129 290,754

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and 

amortisation - (40,059) (1,596,666) - (1,636,725) (156,988) (10,191) (167,179)

Carrying 
amount at 30 
June 2015 129,376 128,035 8,709,415 315,968 9,282,794 121,637 1,938 123,575

Cost 132,915 163,577 8,973,456 665,135 9,935,083 263,252 11,634 274,886

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and 

amortisation - (35,811) (1,341,917) - (1,377,728) (133,783) (9,245) (143,028)

Carrying 
amount at 30 
June 2014 132,915 127,766 7,631,539 665,135 8,557,355 129,469 2,389 131,858
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11. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (e) Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets during the reporting   
  year are presented below:

Freehold 
land

$’000
Buildings

$’000

Plant and 
equipment

$’000

Works 
under 

construction
$’000

Total 
plant and 

equipment
$’000

Computer 
software

$’000

Intellectual 
property

$’000

Total 
intangible 

assets
$’000

Carrying 

amount at 30 

June 2014 132,915 127,766 7,631,539 665,135 8,557,355 129,469 2,389 131,858

Cost
Additions (note 

11(e)(i)) - - - 1,043,000 1,043,000 - - -

Transfers to 

inventory - - - (15,438) (15,438) - - -

Transfers in/(out) 282 4,923 1,355,656 (1,376,729) (15,868) 15,373 495 15,868

Disposals (3,821) (406) (23,031) - (27,258) - - -

Accumulated 
depreciation 
and 
amortisation
Transfers (in)/out - 430 (463) - (33) 33 - 33

Disposals - 76 10,425 - 10,501 - - -

Depreciation 

and 

amortisation 

(note 11(e)(ii)) - (4,754) (264,711) - (269,465) (23,238) (946) (24,184)

Carrying 
amount at 30 
June 2015 129,376 128,035 8,709,415 315,968 9,282,794 121,637 1,938 123,575

Carrying 

amount at 30 

June 2013 132,128 122,675 6,833,863 565,255 7,653,921 130,771 7,765 138,536

Cost
Additions (note 

11(e)(i)) - - 114 1,194,058 1,194,172 - - -

Transfers to 

inventory - - - (17,667) (17,667) - - -

Transfers in/(out) 1,839 9,801 1,045,238 (1,076,511) (19,633) 19,633 - 19,633

Disposals (1,052) (172) (17,227) - (18,451) - - -

Accumulated 
depreciation 
and 
amortisation
Transfers (in)/out - 19 (19) - - - - -

Disposals - 19 6,633 - 6,652 - - -

Depreciation 

and 

amortisation 

(note 11(e)(ii)) - (4,576) (237,063) - (241,639) (20,935) (5,376) (26,311)

Carrying 
amount at 30 
June 2014 132,915 127,766 7,631,539 665,135 8,557,355 129,469 2,389 131,858

  (i) Additions

   Contributed assets
   Western Power receives non-cash capital contributions in the form of gifted network assets. The fair value of

   gifted network assets included in additions to works under construction in the reporting year was

   $147.877 million (30 June 2014: $59.138 million). 

   Capitalised borrowing costs
   Additions include borrowing costs of $11.895 million (30 June 2014: $11.724 million) attributable to assets in

   the course of construction, and capitalised in the reporting year at a weighted average interest rate of

   4.9 per cent (30 June 2014: 5.2 per cent).          
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11. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (e) Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets during the reporting   

  year are presented below: (continued)

  (ii) Depreciation and amortisation

   Depreciation and amortisation represent charges to the ‘depreciation and amortisation expense’ in the

   statement of comprehensive income of $283.818 million (30 June 2014: $259.767 million), together with

   capitalised depreciation for fl eet assets used in the course of construction of $9.831 million (30 June 2014:

   $8.183 million).          

   Refer to notes 11(a) and 11(b) respectively for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods and

   useful economic lives applied.

 (f) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impairment of non-fi nancial assets

  Western Power assesses the impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets at least

  annually in accordance with the accounting policy in note 11(c). This involves evaluating impairment indicators

  specifi c to Western Power and the particular asset or CGU that may differ from actual results including market

  values; changes in technical, economic or legal environments; obsolescence or physical damage.

  There were no indicators of impairment to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets at 30 June

  2015 (30 June 2014: nil).

12. Trade and other payables

 (a) Accounting policy

  Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

  Trade and other payables are classifi ed as current liabilities unless payment is not due for at least 12 months

  after the reporting date.

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

  Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Western Power prior to the

  end of the reporting year which are unpaid. They are usually settled within 30 days of recognition.

2014/15 2013/14

Note
Current

$’000

Non-
current
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Non-
current

$’000
Total

$’000

Trade payables and accruals 100,790 - 100,790 193,291 - 193,291

Other payables 35,556 - 35,556 46,939 - 46,939

Contributory extension scheme 12(b)(i) 2,420 6,657 9,077 3,627 7,108 10,735

138,766 6,657 145,423 243,857 7,108 250,965

  (i) Contributory extension scheme

   Contributory extension scheme payables represent contributions received from customers to extend

   specifi c electricity supplies. These non-interest bearing deposits are refunded at the end of the contribution

   period unless other customers connect to the extensions. By 2023, when the scheme fi nishes, all scheme

   members will have had their contributions refunded.
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13. Provisions

 (a) Accounting policy

  Provisions are recognised when Western Power has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

  past events; it is probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable

  estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of

  management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

  The discount rate used to determine the present value refl ects the market assessments of the time value of

  money and the risks specifi c to the liability. The movement in the provision due to the passage of time is

  recognised as a borrowing cost.

  Employee benefi ts
  Wages and salaries:

  Liabilities arising in respect of employee benefi ts that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the

  reporting date are measured at their nominal amount based on remuneration rates that are expected to be

  paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for wages and salaries is recognised in other payables. The

  liability for all other short-term employee benefi ts is recognised in the provision for employee benefi ts.  

  Annual and long service leave:

  The liabilities arising in respect of annual and long service leave are not expected to be settled wholly within

  12 months of the reporting date. They are recognised in the provision for employee benefi ts and measured

  at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up

  to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to factors including the

  expected future wages and salaries levels, experience of employee departures and settlement dates. Expected

  future payments are discounted using the Commonwealth bond rates whose terms most closely match the

  terms of the related liabilities. Independent actuarial valuations are carried out at each reporting date.

  Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised

  in profi t and loss.

  Leave obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet where there is no unconditional right

  to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when actual settlement is

  expected to occur.

  Retirement benefi t obligations:

  All employees of Western Power are entitled to benefi ts upon retirement, disability or death from any number of

  superannuation plans, which may include a defi ned contribution section, a defi ned benefi t section, or both.

  Defi ned contribution plans
  A defi ned contribution plan is a post-employment benefi t plan under which Western Power pays fi xed

  contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

  Contributions to defi ned contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the reporting periods in which the

  services are rendered by employees.
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13. Provisions (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  Defi ned benefi t plans
  A defi ned benefi t plan is a post-employment benefi t other than a defi ned contribution plan. A liability or asset

  in respect of defi ned benefi t superannuation plans is recognised in the balance sheet, and is measured

  separately for each plan as the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation in respect of services provided

  by employees up to the reporting date, less the fair value of any plan assets at that date.

  The present value of the defi ned benefi t superannuation plans is based upon expected future payments and

  is calculated using discounted cash fl ows consistent with the projected unit credit method. Consideration is

  given to factors including the expected future wages and salaries level, experience of employee departures and

  periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using the Commonwealth bond rates whose

  terms most closely match the terms of the related liabilities. An independent actuarial valuation is carried out at

  each reporting date.

  The annual net defi ned benefi t interest expense and/or income is determined by applying the discount rate

  used to measure the defi ned benefi t obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to the net defi ned

  benefi t liability and/or asset. It is recognised immediately along with all other defi ned benefi t plan expenses

  including past services costs, in ‘employee related expenses’ in profi t and loss.

  Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions

  (including changes in the bond rate) are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other

  comprehensive income. They are included in ‘retained earnings’ in the statement of changes in equity and in

  the balance sheet.

  Changes in the present value of defi ned benefi t obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are

  recognised immediately in profi t and loss as past service costs.

  Termination benefi ts:

  Termination benefi ts are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when

  an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefi ts. Western Power recognises

  termination benefi ts at the earlier of the following dates: (i) when Western Power can no longer withdraw the

  offer of those benefi ts; and (ii) when Western Power recognises the costs for a restructuring that is within the

  scope of AASB 137 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets and involves the payment of

  termination benefi ts.           

  In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancies, the termination benefi ts are measured

  based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefi ts falling due more than 12 months

  after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.  

  Rehabilitation costs
  A provision for site rehabilitation costs is recognised when there is either a legal or constructive obligation

  to rehabilitate a site; it is probable a rehabilitation expense will be incurred; and the costs can be reliably

  estimated. The amount of the provision for future rehabilitation costs is capitalised into the cost of the related

  property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the expected useful life.

  Rehabilitation costs that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, but that do not have a future

  economic benefi t are expensed to profi t and loss.
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13. Provisions (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

2014/15 2013/14

Note
Current

$’000

Non-
current
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Non-
current

$’000
Total

$’000

Employee benefi ts:

 Annual leave 13(e) 38,636 - 38,636 36,620 - 36,620

 Long service leave 13(e) 34,342 24,401 58,743 32,775 20,645 53,420

 Retirement benefi t obligations 13(b)(i) - 276 276 - - -

 Other 1,945 - 1,945 291 - 291

74,923 24,677 99,600 69,686 20,645 90,331

Rehabilitation costs 7,505 7,640 15,145 9,212 7,381 16,593

Environmental costs 13(b)(ii) 1,116 2,211 3,327 478 3,031 3,509

Other 6,300 - 6,300 - - -

89,844 34,528 124,372 79,376 31,057 110,433

  (i) Retirement benefi t obligations

   Nature of benefi ts provided
   Western Power contributes to the defi ned benefi t pension scheme (the Scheme) in which members receive

   pension benefi ts payable on retirement, death or invalidity, or a lump sum benefi t on resignation. The

   Scheme is closed to new members. There are no assets in the Scheme.

   Description of regulatory framework
   The Scheme operates under the State Superannuation Act 2000 (WA) and the State Superannuation

   Regulations 2001 (WA).

   Although the Scheme is not formally subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation,

   the Western Australian State Government has undertaken (in the Heads of Government Agreement) to

   operate the Scheme in accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation.

   As an exempt public sector superannuation scheme (as defi ned in the SIS legislation), the Scheme is not

   subject to any minimum funding requirements.

   As a constitutionally protected scheme, the Scheme is not required to pay tax.

   Description of other entities’ responsibilities for governance of the Scheme
   The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) is the Scheme’s Trustee and is responsible for

   the governance of the Scheme. As Trustee, GESB has a legal obligation to act solely in the best interests of

   Scheme benefi ciaries. GESB has the following roles:

• administration of the Scheme and payments to the benefi ciaries when required in accordance with the 

Scheme rules

• management and investment of the Scheme assets (where relevant)

• compliance with the Heads of Government Agreement.

  (ii) Environmental costs

   Environmental provisions relate to estimated costs on essential safety expenditure. 

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments: employee benefi ts  

  The present value of employee benefi ts, including annual and long service leave and retirement benefi t

  obligations, is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various

  assumptions that may differ from actual results including the discount rate, future wages and salaries levels,

  employee departures and settlement dates. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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13. Provisions (continued)

 (d) Movements in provisions      

  Movements in each class of provision during the reporting year, other than employee benefi ts, are presented

  below:

    

Rehabilitation
costs
$’000

Environmental
costs
$’000

Other
$’000

At 30 June 2014 16,593 3,509 -

Provided for in the reporting year 334 - 6,300

Charged in the reporting year (951) (182) -

Reversed in the reporting year (831) - -

At 30 June 2015 15,145 3,327 6,300

 (e) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

  The annual and long service leave benefi ts reported as current because Western Power does not have an

  unconditional right to defer settlement, but that based on past experience are not expected to be taken or paid

  within the next 12 months, are presented below:

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Annual leave (current):

 Annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months 23,429 21,738

 Annual leave expected to be settled after 12 months 15,207 14,882

38,636 36,620
Long service leave (current):

 Long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months 4,578 4,930

 Long service leave expected to be settled after 12 months 29,764 27,845

34,342 32,775

14. Deferred income    

 (a) Accounting policy

  Contributions received in advance are deferred and subsequently recognised as revenue when the developers

  or customers are connected to the network in accordance with the terms of the contributions. Deferred

  income is classifi ed as current liabilities unless connection to the network is not due for at least 12 months after

  the reporting date.

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

  Deferred income relates to contributions received in advance from developers and customers.

2014/15 2013/14

Current
$’000

Non-
current
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Non-
current

$’000
Total

$’000

Deferred income 60,944 4,101 65,045 85,047 3,567 88,614
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14. Deferred income (continued)

 (c) Movements in deferred income

  Movements in deferred income during the reporting year are presented below:

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

At 1 July 88,614 111,982

Contributions in the reporting year 84,810 117,151

Earned in the reporting year (108,379) (140,519)

At 30 June 65,045 88,614

15. Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  

 (a) Accounting policy

  Refer to note 6(a) for details of Western Power’s ‘deferred tax equivalents’ accounting policy.

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

  The balance of deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities comprises temporary differences attributable to:

2014/15 2013/14

Non-current

Deferred 
tax asset

$’000

Deferred 
tax 

liability
$’000

Net 
(liability 

less 
asset)
$’000

Deferred 
tax asset

$’000

Deferred 
tax 

liability
$’000

Net 
(liability 

less 
asset)
$’000

Property, plant and equipment (PPE), and intangible 

assets - 631,114 631,114 - 494,398 494,398

Contributory extension scheme - 844 844 - 1,115 1,115

Derivative fi nancial instruments 22,436 - (22,436) 11,956 - (11,956)

Provisions for employee benefi ts 31,502 - (31,502) 27,100 - (27,100)

Tax equivalent losses 76,696 - (76,696) 96,172 - (96,172)

Non refundable research and development (R&D) tax 

offsets 11,204 - (11,204) 5,209 - (5,209)

Other temporary differences 8,788 - (8,788) 10,661 - (10,661)

Total deferred tax equivalent 150,626 631,958 481,332 151,098 495,513 344,415

Set-off deferred tax equivalent assets pursuant to 

set-off provisions (150,626) (150,626) - (151,098) (151,098) -

Net deferred tax equivalent - 481,332 481,332 - 344,415 344,415

Expected to be recovered/(settled) within 12 months 40,327 971 (39,356) 31,814 - (31,814)

Expected to be recovered after more than 12 months 110,299 630,987 520,688 119,284 495,513 376,229

150,626 631,958 481,332 151,098 495,513 344,415
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15. Deferred tax equivalent liabilities (continued)  

 (c) Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets

  Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets during the reporting year are presented below:

Derivative 
fi nancial 

instruments
$’000

Provisions 
for 

employee 
benefi ts

$’000

Tax 
equivalent 

losses
$’000

Non 
refundable 

R&D tax 
offsets
$’000

Other 
temporary 

differences
$’000

Deferred 
tax 

equivalent 
asset
$’000

At 30 June 2014 11,956 27,100 96,172 5,209 10,661 151,098

Charged to profi t and loss - 4,402 (19,166) 5,319 (1,882) (11,327)

Charged to other comprehensive income 10,480 - - - 9 10,489

Adjustment to income tax equivalent 

provided in prior years - - (310) 676 - 366

At 30 June 2015 22,436 31,502 76,696 11,204 8,788 150,626

At 1 July 2013 - 27,364 55,873 6,936 7,423 97,596

Charged to profi t and loss - (264) 41,379 661 3,225 45,001

Charged to other comprehensive income 11,956 - - - 13 11,969

Adjustment to income tax equivalent 

provided in prior years - - (1,080) (2,388) - (3,468)

At 30 June 2014 11,956 27,100 96,172 5,209 10,661 151,098

 (d) Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities

  Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities during the reporting year are presented below:

PPE, and 
intangible 

assets
$’000

Contributory 
extension 

scheme
$’000

Derivative 
fi nancial 

instruments
$’000

Deferred tax 
equivalent 

liability
$’000

At 30 June 2014 494,398 1,115 - 495,513

Charged to profi t and loss 136,267 (271) - 135,996

Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years 449 - - 449

At 30 June 2015 631,114 844 - 631,958

At 1 July 2013 364,727 1,412 3,024 369,163

Charged to profi t and loss 132,550 (297) - 132,253

Charged to other comprehensive income - - (3,024) (3,024)

Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years (2,879) - - (2,879)

At 30 June 2014 494,398 1,115 - 495,513
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In this section
This section presents the liabilities relating to Western Power’s fi nancing activities, as well as the key fi nancial risks and 

equity of the business.

SECTION 4: DEBT AND EQUITY

16. Financial risk management

 (a) Overview

  The Western Power Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk

  management framework. To assist in fulfi lling this role, the Board has established a Finance and Risk

  Committee (F&RC) and a Treasury Management Committee. The F&RC oversees Western Power’s treasury

  activities through the Treasury Management Committee. The fi nancial management policy establishes the

  framework for managing the fi nancial risks arising from Western Power’s operations. Adherence to this

  framework ensures that at all times, Western Power maintains an appropriate level of control over fi nancial and

  associated risks to ensure compliance with Western Power’s strategic plan and governance responsibilities.

  The F&RC is also assisted in its oversight role by the Risk Assurance and Audit (RA&A) group, which

  undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which

  are reported to the F&RC.

  The principal fi nancial risks arising from Western Power’s current operations including the objectives, policies

  and processes for measuring and managing these exposures are summarised below and further described in

  this note:

Risk Note Exposure Measurement Management

Market risk:
 Interest rate risk 16(b)(i) - Borrowings at fl oating rates - Sensitivity analysis - Interest rate swaps

- Forward borrowing

  commitments

 Currency risk 16(b)(ii) - Commercial transactions - Cash fl ow forecasting - Forward exchange contracts

- Sensitivity analysis

 Commodity risk 16(b)(iii) - Commercial transactions - Sensitivity analysis - Forward commodity contracts

Credit risk 16(c) - Cash and cash equivalents - Credit ratings - Credit limits

- Trade and other receivables 

   (excluding prepayments)

- Ageing analysis - Bank guarantees, insurance

  bonds or cash deposits

- Derivative fi nancial instruments - Legal collection of debts

Liquidity risk 16(d) - Trade and other payables

- Borrowings

- Cash fl ow forecasting - Available cash and borrowing

  facilities

- Derivative fi nancial instruments

 (b) Market risk

  Market risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will   

  fl uctuate because of changes in market prices. Western Power has exposures to movements in interest rates,

  foreign exchange rates and commodity markets.

  (i) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument

   will fl uctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk in Western Power arises from

   borrowing obligations.  
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16. Financial risk management (continued)

 (b) Market risk (continued)

  (i) Interest rate risk (continued)  

   Western Power has an interest rate risk management strategy which aims to manage exposures to interest

   rate movements. Debt portfolio structure guidelines are set to manage the interest rate risks arising from

   Western Power’s commercial and regulatory environment. Interest rate exposure mix guidelines are set

   to ensure that Western Power is not exposed to excess risk from interest rate volatility. Interest rate forecasts

   are continuously monitored and, where appropriate, exposures to interest rates are managed through

   the use of Board approved hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps and forward domestic

   borrowing commitments. Forward domestic borrowing commitments are entered into with the WATC in

   order to borrow specifi ed amounts in the future at pre-determined interest rates.

  (ii) Currency risk

   Currency risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument

   will fl uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk in Western Power arises from

   commercial transactions denominated in foreign currency, principally for the purchase of capital equipment

   from foreign suppliers.

   Western Power’s foreign exchange risk management strategy aims to manage signifi cant exposures through

   the use of Board approved hedging instruments, such as forward exchange contracts that provide certainty

   on costs. As at 30 June 2015, Western Power did not have any currency risk (30 June 2014: $0.164 million

   United States dollars (USD) at a weighted average foreign exchange rate of 0.9139).

  (iii) Commodity risk

   Commodity risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument

   will fl uctuate because of changes in commodity prices. Commodity risk in Western Power arises from

   variability in commodity prices contained in commercial transactions principally for the purchase of

   equipment such as transformers, conductor cable and prefabricated steel towers from manufacturers.

   Western Power’s commodity price risk management strategy aims to manage signifi cant exposures through  

   the use of Board approved hedging instruments such as forward commodity contracts. Western Power has

   not entered into any fi nancial instruments to manage commodity risk in the current reporting year (30 June

   2014: nil). 
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16. Financial risk management (continued)

 (b) Market risk (continued)

  Sensitivity analysis
  The following table summarises the potential impact to the annual post-tax profi t and other comprehensive

  income of Western Power due to movements in interest rate risk and foreign currency rate risk. The

  assumptions used are based on management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible movement given

  current market conditions.

Carrying 
amount

Interest rate risk Foreign currency risk

Impact on
post-tax profi t

+/-1%

Impact on other 
comprehensive 

income
+/-1%

Impact on
post-tax profi t

+/-10%

Impact on other 
comprehensive 

income
+/-10%

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 30 June 2015
Cash and cash 

equivalents 26,940 269 (269) - - - - - -

Trade and other 

receivables 204,986 - - - - - - - -

Derivatives-interest 

rate swaps 4,707 - - 6,154 (6,754) - - - -

Total fi nancial assets 236,633 269 (269) 6,154 (6,754) - - - -

Trade and other 

payables 145,423 - - - - - - - -

Borrowings1 7,220,406 (9,407) 9,407 - - - - - -

Derivatives-interest 

rate swaps 8,038 - - 17,735 (19,085) - - - -

Derivatives-forward 

borrowings2 33,594 - - 21,643 (21,643) - - - -

Total fi nancial 
liabilities 7,407,461 (9,407) 9,407 39,378 (40,728) - - - -

At 30 June 2014
Cash and cash 

equivalents 25,471 255 (255) - - - - - -

Trade and other 

receivables 199,265 - - - - - - - -

Total fi nancial assets 224,736 255 (255) - - - - - -

Trade and other 

payables 250,965 - - - - - - - -

Borrowings1 6,833,314 (7,680) 7,680 - - - - - -

Derivatives-interest 

rate swaps 861 - - 2,708 (2,809) - - - -

Derivatives-FX 

contracts 5 - - - - - - (16) 19

Derivatives-forward 

borrowings2 37,166 - - 52 (52) - - - -

Total fi nancial 
liabilities 7,122,311 (7,680) 7,680 2,760 (2,861) - - (16) 19

  1 The sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power’s net fl oating rate borrowings of $913.0 million

    (30 June 2014: $755.0 million) and variable rate working capital borrowings of $27.7 million (30 June 2014: $13.0 million).

    The majority of Western Power’s borrowings are at fi xed interest rates as allowable under the Board approved treasury

    management framework.

  2 The sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power’s 26 forward domestic borrowing commitments

    (30 June 2014: 52) at an aggregate principal value of $560.0 million (30 June 2014: $1,160.0 million). These commitments

    are entered into to effectively lock-in the interest rate on future borrowing obligations, and are recognised as derivative

    fi nancial instruments in the periods between entering into the forward borrowing agreements and draw downs of the loan

    principal.
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16. Financial risk management (continued)

 (c) Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss to Western Power if a customer or counterparty to a fi nancial instrument

  fails to discharge its contractual obligation. The maximum exposure to credit risk for Western Power is best

  represented by the carrying amounts of fi nancial assets recognised in the balance sheet as at the reporting

  date (refer to note 7).            

  Western Power generally provides credit on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed

  otherwise. Credit risk is actively managed through the adherence of Western Power’s credit risk framework,

  the use of credit ratings and monthly reporting to the Board. Western Power manages the quality of fi nancial

  assets and its concentrations of credit risk by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to historic

  information on counterparty default rates. Bank guarantees, insurance bonds or cash deposits are also

  obtained as security where necessary.

  (i) Impaired trade receivables

   Western Power uses a formalised process to manage the collection of debts which allows appropriate

   legal action to be taken where necessary. Where there is objective evidence trade receivables will not be

   collectable, a provision for impairment is recognised. Objective evidence includes known fi nancial diffi culty

   of the debtor, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue).   

   As at 30 June 2015, trade receivables with a nominal value of $1.311 million were recognised as impaired

   and fully provided for in the ‘provision for impairment of trade receivables’ (30 June 2014: $1.180 million).

   The creation and release of this provision is recognised in ‘other expenses’ in the statement of

   comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the provision are generally written off when there is no

   expectation of recovering additional cash.

   Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables during the reporting year are presented below:

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

At 1 July 1,180 1,296

Charged in the reporting year:

 Provision for impairment recognised during the reporting year 742 1,083

742 1,083

Receivables previously provided for and written off during the reporting year as uncollectable (611) (1,199)

At 30 June 1,311 1,180

   There is no collateral security in place in respect of these amounts. 

  (ii) Trade receivables past due but not impaired

   As at 30 June 2015, trade receivables of $4.221 million were past due but not impaired (30 June 2014:

   $4.699 million). These receivables relate to a number of independent customers for which there is no recent

   history of default and hence, no provision of impairment is deemed necessary.

   The ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is presented below:

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

between 1-59 days 2,313 2,178

between 60-89 days 384 311

more than 90 days 1,524 2,210

4,221 4,699
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SECTION 4: DEBT AND EQUITY (CONTINUED)

16. Financial risk management (continued)

 (d) Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk Western Power will encounter diffi culty in meeting obligations associated with fi nancial

  liabilities as they fall due. Western Power is governed by the treasury management framework which requires

  active management of cash and ensures adequate facilities are in place to satisfy ongoing funding

  requirements. This includes actively managing working capital for immediate needs, and the debt portfolio

  within maturity guidelines to mitigate refi nancing risk.    

  (i) Financing arrangements

   Western Power has in place a borrowing facility with the WATC with a limit of $10.0 billion (30 June 2014:

   $10.0 billion). Included in this, is a working capital facility limit of $100.0 million that can be drawn down to

   meet short-term fi nancing needs (30 June 2014: $100.0 million). The usage of the WATC borrowings facility

   is governed by Western Power’s Strategic Development Plan agreed with the Minister for Energy.  

   The unused portion of Western Power’s borrowings facility with the WATC and the maximum amount of

   borrowings permitted by the Department of Treasury (DoT) for the reporting year are presented in the

   following table.

WATC facility Permitted by DoT

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

Borrowings limits 10,000,000 10,000,000 7,367,300 6,933,500

Used portion of borrowings limits:

 Domestic working capital facility 17 (27,700) (13,000) (27,700) (13,000)

 Domestic currency loans 17 (7,134,170) (6,812,047) (7,134,170) (6,812,047)

(7,161,870) (6,825,047) (7,161,870) (6,825,047)

Unused portion of borrowings limits 2,838,130 3,174,953 205,430 108,453

   The maximum amount of borrowings permitted by the DoT for the reporting year ended 30 June 2016 is

   currently $7.9 billion (30 June 2015 limit: currently $7.4 billion).

  (ii) Maturities of fi nancial liabilities

   The following table presents Western Power’s contractual maturities of fi nancial liabilities, including

   estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting arrangements. The table also indicates the

   periods in which the cash fl ows associated with derivatives that are cash fl ow hedges are expected to occur.
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16. Financial risk management (continued)

 (d) Liquidity risk (continued)        

  (ii) Maturities of fi nancial liabilities (continued)

Note

Within one 
year

$’000

Between one 
and fi ve years

$’000

Later than fi ve 
years
$’000

Total 
contractual 
cash fl ows 

(undiscounted) 
$’000

Carrying 
amount

$’000

At 30 June 2015
Interest rate swaps 18

   Net settled 2,352 5,337 (4,580) 3,109 3,331

Forward domestic borrowing 

commitments1 18 - - - - 33,594

Total derivative fi nancial 
liabilities 2,352 5,337 (4,580) 3,109 36,925

Trade and other payables 12 138,133 7,424 2,678 148,235 145,423

   Trade payables and accruals 100,790 - - 100,790 100,790

   Other payables 35,556 - - 35,556 35,556

   Contributory extension

   scheme 1,787 7,424 2,678 11,889 9,077

Borrowings 17 1,116,256 6,078,716 1,756,784 8,951,756 7,220,406

   Working capital facility 27,896 - - 27,896 27,896

   Fixed rate borrowings 625,350 3,212,163 281,586 4,119,099 3,678,102

   Fixed to fl oating rate

   borrowings 46,601 1,237,145 53,775 1,337,521 1,157,455

   Floating rate notes 323,484 424,841 675,259 1,423,584 1,218,937

   CPI linked debt 86,320 776,696 502,162 1,365,178 1,138,016

   Forward domestic borrowing

   commitments1 6,605 427,871 244,002 678,478 -

Total non-derivatives 
fi nancial liabilities 1,254,389 6,086,140 1,759,462 9,099,991 7,365,829

At 30 June 2014
Interest rate swaps 18

   Net settled 555 480 - 1,035 861

Forward exchange contracts 18

   (Infl ow) (175) - - (175)

   Outfl ow 179 - - 179 5

Forward domestic borrowing 

commitments1 18 - - - - 37,166

Total derivative fi nancial 
liabilities 559 480 - 1,039 38,032

Trade and other payables 12 243,107 6,392 5,184 254,683 250,965

   Trade payables and accruals 193,291 - - 193,291 193,291

   Other payables 46,939 - - 46,939 46,939

   Contributory extension

   scheme 2,877 6,392 5,184 14,453 10,735

Borrowings 17 1,303,341 5,667,415 2,467,965 9,438,721 6,833,314

   Working capital facility 13,148 - - 13,148 13,148

   Fixed rate borrowings 737,091 3,223,010 136,423 4,096,524 3,577,660

   Fixed to fl oating rate

   borrowings 44,665 676,191 616,446 1,337,302 1,106,177

   Floating rate notes 294,772 544,913 108,855 948,540 858,134

   CPI linked debt 202,233 618,287 757,360 1,577,880 1,278,195

   Forward domestic borrowing

   commitments1 11,432 605,014 848,881 1,465,327 -

Total non-derivatives 
fi nancial liabilities 1,546,448 5,673,807 2,473,149 9,693,404 7,084,279

1 There are no contractual cash fl ows for forward domestic borrowing commitments in the period between entering into the forward

   borrowing agreement and draw down of the loan principal. The contractual cash fl ows on draw down of the agreed loan principal

   are presented in the ‘borrowings’ section of this table.

   Borrowing facilities are in Australian dollars. Funds may be drawn at any time with varying maturities. The

   average maturity as at 30 June 2015 was 3.2 years (30 June 2014: 3.2 years). 
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17. Borrowings  

 (a) Accounting policy

  Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently measured at

  amortised cost using the effective interest method.

  Forward domestic borrowing commitments
  Forward borrowing commitments are recognised as derivative fi nancial instruments in the period between

  entering into the forward borrowing agreement and draw down of the loan principal. Once the loan is drawn

  down, the principal is accounted for at fair value like any other borrowing. Any fair value gain or loss recognised

  in the hedging reserve is re-classifi ed to profi t and loss over the term of the loan.

  Borrowings are classifi ed as current liabilities unless Western Power has an agreement with the lender that

  allows refi nancing of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. This includes where a forward

  domestic borrowing commitment exists that replaces the existing borrowing on the date of maturity, and where

  this extends the maturity of the original borrowing to greater than 12 months after the reporting date.

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

2014/15 2013/14

Note
Current

$’000

Non-
current
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Non-
current

$’000
Total

$’000

Domestic working capital facility 27,700 - 27,700 13,000 - 13,000

Domestic currency loans 17(c) - 7,134,170 7,134,170 - 6,812,047 6,812,047

Accrued interest 196 58,340 58,536 148 8,119 8,267

 27,896 7,192,510 7,220,406 13,148 6,820,166 6,833,314

  Western Power’s domestic borrowings are all provided by the WATC.

 (c) Classifi cation of borrowings

  Non-current domestic currency loans of $7,134.170 million (30 June 2014: $6,812.047 million) includes an

  amount of $788.899 million (30 June 2014: $990.563 million) that will become due and payable during the

  2015/16 fi nancial reporting year. It is Western Power’s expectation and discretion that this amount will be

  refi nanced under the master lending agreement rather than repaid, and therefore has been classifi ed as non

  current. This is supported by:

• a master lending agreement with the WATC, an entity owned by the Western Australian State Government,

that allows Western Power to refi nance all or any part of maturing debt at regular intervals

• the approval of Western Power’s forecast borrowing requirements for the next four years, including no

repayment of amounts classifi ed as non-current above, within the Western Australian State Budget handed

down on 14 May 2015.         
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18. Derivative fi nancial instruments  

 (a) Accounting policy

  Derivative fi nancial instruments
  Derivative fi nancial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered

  into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The valuation techniques used

  to measure fair value are further described in note 19(b). Derivative fi nancial instruments are presented as

  assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

  Hedge accounting
  For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classifi ed as:

• fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or 

an unrecognised fi rm commitment

• cash fl ow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash fl ows that is either attributable to a 

particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, or the

foreign currency risk in an unrecognised fi rm commitment.

  On entering into a hedge relationship, Western Power determines whether hedge accounting is applied.

  Where hedge accounting applies, Western Power formally designates and documents the relationship

  between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, as well as its risk management objective and strategy

  for undertaking the hedge. Western Power also documents its assessment, both at the inception of the hedge

  and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivative that is used in the hedging transaction has been and will

  continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash fl ows of the hedged item.  

  Fair value hedges:

  For all derivative transactions designated as a fair value hedge, the portion of gain or loss on the hedging

  instrument is recognised in profi t and loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset

  or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. There is no impact in other comprehensive income or the

  hedging reserve. Western Power has not accounted for any derivative fi nancial instruments that qualify for

  hedge accounting as fair value hedges in the current reporting year (30 June 2014: nil).

  Cash fl ow hedges:

  For all derivative transactions designated as a cash fl ow hedge, the portion of gain or loss on the hedging

  instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and

  accumulated in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion is recognised in profi t and loss immediately. When

  the cash fl ows occur, the amount that has been deferred to equity is transferred either to the carrying value of

  the asset, in the case of non-fi nancial assets, or re-classifi ed to profi t and loss as appropriate in the same

  period as the hedged item affects the profi t and loss.

  When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for

  hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is

  recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profi t and loss. When a forecast

  transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is

  immediately re-classifi ed to profi t and loss.        

  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
  For all derivative transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any changes in fair value are recognised

  immediately in profi t and loss. During the year ended 30 June 2015, all Western Power’s derivative transactions

  qualifi ed for hedge accounting (30 June 2014: all qualifi ed).
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18. Derivative fi nancial instruments (continued) 

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  Derecognition
  Derivative fi nancial instruments are derecognised when Western Power no longer controls the contractual

  rights that comprise the fi nancial instrument. During the year ended 30 June 2015, Western Power did not

  derecognise any derivative fi nancial instruments (30 June 2014: nil).

 (b) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

2014/15 2013/14

Note
Current

$’000

Non-
current
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

Non-
current

$’000
Total

$’000

Assets 18(b)(i)

Interest rate swaps - 4,707 4,707 - - -

- 4,707 4,707 - - -

Liabilities 18(b)(i)

Interest rate swaps - 8,038 8,038 - 861 861

Forward exchange contracts - - - 5 - 5

Forward domestic borrowing commitments 21,221 12,373 33,594 11,758 25,408 37,166

21,221 20,411 41,632 11,763 26,269 38,032

  (i) Nature of derivatives

   Derivative fi nancial instruments are used to hedge exposures to movements in interest rates, foreign

   exchange rates and commodity prices. Western Power uses derivative fi nancial instruments in accordance

   with Board approved policy. Speculative trading where a derivative is entered into without an underlying

   business exposure is strictly prohibited. All derivative activities are carried out by a specialist group within

   Western Power that has the appropriate skills, experience and supervision.

   As at the reporting dates, Western Power had the following derivative fi nancial instruments:

Instrument Exposure hedged

Interest rate swaps

(cash fl ow hedge accounting per note 18(a))

Western Power enters into interest rate swaps in order to hedge against fl oating 

interest rate exposures arising from borrowing obligations

Forward exchange contracts

(cash fl ow hedge accounting per note 18(a))

Western Power enters into forward exchange contracts in order to hedge against 

foreign exchange risk arising from the future purchase of capital equipment in 

foreign currencies

Forward domestic borrowing commitments

(cash fl ow hedge accounting per note 18(a))

Western Power enters into forward domestic borrowing commitments in order to 

hedge against interest rate exposures arising from future borrowing obligations
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19. Recognised fair value measurements  

 (a) Fair value hierarchy

  The assets and liabilities of Western Power measured and recognised at fair value as at the reporting date are

  presented in the below table, by the following fair value hierarchy levels:

  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

    either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

  Level 3: Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

2014/15 2013/14

Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Total
$’000

Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Total
$’000

Financial assets
Derivative fi nancial instruments - 4,707 - 4,707 - - - -

Financial liabilities
Derivative fi nancial instruments - 41,632 - 41,632 - 38,032 - 38,032

It is Western Power’s policy to recognise transfers into and out of the fair value hierarchy levels at the end of

each reporting year. As at 30 June 2015, there were no transfers between levels for recurring fair value

measurements (30 June 2014: no transfers).

 (b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values 

  Recurring fair value measurements
  The fair value of derivatives in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting

  period. Where derivatives are entered into that are not traded in active markets the fair value is determined

  using valuation techniques. These techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available

  and rely as little as possible on specifi c estimates. In some instances, independent valuations from the provider

  of the instrument are used.

  If all signifi cant inputs required to fair value an instrument are based on observable market data, or the

  valuation is independently calculated by the provider of the instrument, the instrument is included in level 2.

  If one or more of the signifi cant inputs is not based on observable market data the instrument is included in

  level 3. For the year ended 30 June 2015, level 3 valuation techniques were not used (30 June 2014: not used).

  Specifi c valuation techniques used to value derivative fi nancial instruments (where relevant) include:

• the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated at the present value of the estimated future cash fl ows

based on a combination of observable BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves

• the fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using a combination of observable forward

exchange rates, BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves at the reporting date

• the fair value of forward domestic borrowing commitments is independently calculated by the WATC, the

provider of these instruments.

       
  All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2. For the potential impact to Western Power’s

  annual post-tax profi t and other comprehensive income due to movements in the key observable inputs being

  interest and foreign exchange rates, refer to the sensitivity analysis in note 16(b).    
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20. Contributed equity

 (a) Accounting policy

  Contributions made by the owner are recognised as a direct adjustment to equity when received.

 (b) Nature of contributions 

  Contributed equity represents the initial and subsequent contributions made by Western Power’s owner, the

  Western Australian State Government. No shares have been allotted.

  The owner’s initial contribution comprised the assets of Western Power Corporation, after deducting liabilities,

  transferred to Western Power on 1 April 2006. The owner has made subsequent contributions for the edge of

  grid and regional power investment programs, and to offset dividends paid on developer and customer

  contributions.

 (c) Movements in contributed equity

  Movements in contributed equity during the reporting year are presented below:    

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

At 1 July 896,101 821,239

Contributions in the reporting year 20(c)(i) 92,936 74,862

At 30 June 989,037 896,101

  (i) Contributed equity

   In the reporting period ended 30 June 2015, the State Government contributed $92.936 million (30 June

   2014: $74.862 million) to offset Western Power’s 2013/14 dividend payment attributable to developer and

   customer contributions.

21. Reserve and retained earnings

 (a) Accounting policy

  The hedging reserve represents the effective portion of the cumulative net changes in the fair value of cash

  fl ow hedging instruments related to hedging transactions. Amounts are re-classifi ed to profi t and loss when the

  associated hedge transaction affects profi t and loss.

 (b) Movements in hedging reserve

  Movements in the hedging reserve during the reporting year are presented below:

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

At 1 July (27,856) 7,097

Other comprehensive income for the reporting year:

 Changes in the fair value of cash fl ow hedges (38,480) (50,076)

 Tax equivalent on changes in the fair value of cash fl ow hedges 6(d) 11,545 15,023

 Re-classifi cations of cash fl ow hedges to profi t and loss 3,548 143

 Tax equivalent on re-classifi cations of cash fl ow hedges to profi t and loss 6(d) (1,065) (43)

(24,452) (34,953)

Other  (41) -

At 30 June (52,349) (27,856)
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21. Reserve and retained earnings (continued)

 (c) Movements in retained earnings

  Movements in retained earnings during the reporting year are presented below:

Note
2014/15

$’000
2013/14

$’000

At 1 July 548,095 469,453

Profi t for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 348,676 202,946

Dividends provided for or paid 22 (131,915) (124,395)

Other comprehensive income for the reporting year:

 Remeasurements of retirement benefi t obligations (29) 78

 Tax equivalent on remeasurements of retirement benefi t obligations 6(d) 9 13

(20) 91

Other  41 -

At 30 June 764,877 548,095

22. Dividends

 (a) Accounting policy

  Dividends are provided for in the reporting year in which the dividends recommended by the Board are

  accepted by the Minister for Energy, with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western Australia. A

  corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.  

 (b) Dividends recognised in the reporting period

  During the reporting year the following dividends were declared and paid to the Western Australian State

  Government:

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Final dividend (131,915) (124,395)

At 30 June (131,915) (124,395)

 (c) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

  Since the end of the reporting period the directors have recommended, subject to the approval of the Minister

  for Energy, the payment of a fi nal dividend of $232.429 million in respect of the fi nancial year ended 30 June

  2015. The fi nal 2014/15 dividend will be provided for in the accounts once accepted by the Minister for Energy,

  with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western Australia.

  The fi nal 2014/15 dividend will be offset by an equity contribution from the Western Australian Government

  subject to approval as part of the 2015/16 mid-year State budget review. This contribution represents the

  reimbursement of dividends attributable to Western Power’s developer and customer contributions.
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In this section
This section presents other information that must be disclosed in compliance with Australian accounting 

standards and other AASB pronouncements, but that are not immediately related to individual line items in 

the fi nancial statements.

SECTION 5: OTHER INFORMATION

23. Remuneration of auditors

 During the reporting year the following fees were paid, or due and payable, for services provided by the

 Offi ce of the Auditor General:

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Audit services
Annual audit of fi nancial statements and other assurance services (438) (424)

(438) (424)

24. Contingencies

 Western Power’s policy is to disclose details of contingencies where the probability of future receipts and/ or

 payments is not considered remote, as well as details of contingencies, which although considered remote, the

 directors consider should be disclosed.

 (a) Contingent assets      

  Western Power did not have any contingent assets at 30 June 2015.     

 (b) Contingent liabilities

  Contaminated sites
  Western Power has reported 110 sites to the Department of Environment Regulation (DER) as either known

  or suspected to be contaminated under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (WA). Until Western Power conducts

  an investigation to determine the presence and scope of contamination, assess the risk and agree with the

  DER the need and criteria for remediation, Western Power is unable to accurately quantify its clean-up liabilities

  for all known or suspected contaminated sites. Western Power is continuing to monitor the sites and will

  progressively undertake site investigations and remediation on a risk based approach. This approach is

  consistent with the DER guidelines.

  Other
  Western Power is currently party to, or is potentially affected by a number of legal claims. Until proceedings

  relating to these claims are fi nalised uncertainty exists regarding the impact, if any, on the operations of

  Western Power.  

  In the opinion of the directors, provisions or further disclosures are not required in respect of these

  contingencies, as it is not probable a future sacrifi ce of economic benefi ts will be required, or the amount is not

  capable of reliable measurement.           
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25. Commitments

 (a) Lease commitments      

  Non-cancellable operating leases
  Total future commitments to minimum lease payments, including properties, information technology equipment

  and motor vehicles, in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are presented below. Western Power

  expensed operating lease costs of $7.396 million during the year ended 30 June 2015 (30 June 2014: $5.066

  million) (refer to note 5(c)(ii)).    

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Payable within one year 5,206 4,999

Payable later than one year but not later than fi ve years 9,157 7,365

Payable later than fi ve years 997 769

15,360 13,133

 (b) Capital commitments

  Total future capital commitments contracted for at the reporting date, including major transmission and

  distribution capital expenditure associated with asset replacements, regulatory compliance and the state

  underground power project, but not recognised as liabilities are presented below:

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Payable within one year 178,819 221,855

Payable later than one year but not later than fi ve years 10,837 17,285

189,656 239,140

 (c) Other expenditure commitments   

  The State Government requires Western Power, by notice published in the gazette, to make the following future

  annual payments into the tariff equalisation fund for the benefi t of the Regional Power Corporation. The 2014/15

  reported commitments were gazetted on 10 April 2015. Western Power made payments of $136.0 million into

  the fund during the year ended 30 June 2015 (30 June 2014: $209.0 million) (refer to note 5(c)(ii)).

2014/15
$’000

2013/14
$’000

Payable within one year 141,000 136,000

Payable later than one year but not later than fi ve years 162,000 231,000

303,000 367,000

         

26. Events occurring after the reporting date

 Other than below there are no matters or circumstances that have arisen in the period between the end of the

 reporting year and the date of this report that are likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect signifi cantly the

 operations of Western Power, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of Western Power in subsequent

 fi nancial years.

 Western Power is currently undertaking a review of its non-core assets to identify any assets excess to    

 requirements. A detailed sales process may be undertaken where considered appropriate.
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In the directors’ opinion:

(a) The fi nancial statements and notes comply with Australian accounting standards, other authoritative

 pronouncements and Schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA)

(b) The fi nancial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the fi nancial position of Western Power as

 at 30 June 2015 and of its performance for the fi nancial year ended on that date

(c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that Western Power will be able to pay its debts as and when

 they become due and payable

The directors’ have been given the declaration by the Chief Executive Offi cer and Chief Financial Offi cer for 

the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2015 pursuant to Western Power’s Board charter.   

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

G Martin

Board Deputy Chair
C Beckett

Board Chair

24 August 2015
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT

Western Power’s performance is tracked against key performance indicators. The following table 

provides a summary of Western Power’s performance as at 30 June 2015.

INDICATOR DESCRIPTION ACTUAL
2014/15

TARGET
2014/15

Safe

Total Recordable Injury Frequency Rate 5.8 ≤ 8.1

Public safety incidents (monthly average on a rolling 12 month average)1 17.6 ≤ 9.5

Number of wood poles reinforced2 53, 976 55,720

Number of wood poles replaced2 17,765 20,100

Reliable

Average supply unavailability per customer, per year 340 ≤ 650 mins

Average number of interruptions (greater than 60 seconds) per 

customer, per year

2.35 ≤ 2.94

Affordable

Average cost per connection $952 ≤ $1,027

Return on regulated assets 2.30% ≥ 1.80%

Customer experience survey results 80% ≥ 80%

Employee engagement 47% ≥ 48%

NOTES ON INDICATORS:

1  Public safety incidents: This KPI comprises two sub-classes: incidents caused by third party

 interference with the network and those caused by asset failure. Third party incidents represent

 64 per cent of all incidents, and include bird/animal interference and underground or overhead

 conductor strikes, which are all largely out of Western Power’s control. For asset failure related

 incidents, one member of the public was injured and fi ve cases of property damage greater than

 $20,000 occurred during the year.

2 Number of wood poles reinforced/replaced: The targeted volume for these two KPIs was lowered

 during the year in order to redirect programs of work towards other asset classes that were deemed

 to have higher public safety and/or reliability impacts. This change occurred after the Statement of

 Corporate Intent was published.
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